RAE
EHEEIREALERRBARLT

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(RPEARAMBEZEMAZZROBERAF)

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China)
(Bt L35 - 8049)

(Stock Code: 8049)

LT !
LIFTY T I'_‘.r
Fi

Annual Report &3

2010



CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the “Directors”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and its subsidiary (“the Group”). The directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report
have bee arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board"”), | am pleased to report the activities of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

During the year under review, the Group has spent significant
efforts on further promoting its core products, namely Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule (BEEEZR%) and Compound Huonaoshu
capsule ({E 5 EMSETEE). As a result, the total turnover
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 was
RMB200,630,000, representing a sharp growth of 31% as
compared with RMB152,766,000 for the previous year. Profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company significantly
increased to RMB35,891,000 from RMB22,076,000 last year.
For the year ended 31 December 2010, basic earnings per share
increased to RMB6.41 cents from RMB3.94 cents last year.

The notable results in 2010 were the outcome of the continued
effort of all levels of the management in the past year. In fact, the
Board of Directors has already expressed its optimistic view for
2010's profitability in the 2009 annual report. As such, the Board
would like to share with the shareholders that with the following
competitive advantages, which have enabled the Company to
build a strong foundation for it to march into an era of blooming
growth in the coming years.

Firstly, the Board of Directors of the Company correctly made
insightful analysis into the new situation where the State had
currently accelerated medicine reform and increased investment
in public health care. We determined to continue to direct our
main development towards two species including Hai Kun Shen
Xi capsule (R &= %) and Compound Huonaoshu capsule (#
J E IS EF 2 EE) while supplementing our business with distribution
and OTC markets. We delivered immense efforts to enable
our dominant species to be included into the health insurance
directory of various provinces (cities and autonomous regions).
We upheld a sales strategy to tap into the public drug market,
thereby further expanding into the sales market of hospital clinical
drugs. We continued to put efforts on academic promotion
and investment. During the year, by taking advantage of the
opportunities arising from the national professional academic
meeting hosted by National Society of Nephrology in Harbin and
Hangzhou, we actively promoted our products and invited experts
from various regions to make inspection visits to the Company. At
the same time, the Company also launched a number of regional
academic promotion activities, thus effectively fostering a sales
growth in the dominant products.
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ERHRE

Secondly, we further strengthened the production management
and conscientiously implemented the GMP management
protocols, thus reaching a product qualification rate of 100%.

Thirdly, we accelerated the pace of technological transformation
and improved the production facilities. The first improvement was
the completion of the reconstruction of two solid workshops, and
the operation of standard warehouses. The second improvement
was the completion of the technological transformation of the
production line of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (BEB=ZBE).
Our production capacity and production efficiency were both
significantly enhanced. The production capacity had doubled when
compared with last year, whereas the cost per tonne declined by
over RMB1,000 over last year. Very significant fruits were reaped.
The third improvement was the further transformation of the
sewage water treatment station, making the sewage discharge
meet all standards.

Fourthly, Jilin Province Medicinal Plants Trading Company Limited
(Medicinal Plants) (a subsidiary) of Jilin Province had further
increased its investment in the improvement of the infrastructure
including safety net. This helped Medicinal Plants ensure a higher
survival rate while maintaining a closed management.

Fifthly, during the year, the Company continued to be awarded
with the honorary title of the “Top Hundred Private Enterprise in
Jilin Province” ("&H#& AsEERZME") by Jilin Provincial Party
Committee and Provincial Government. It was also jointly named
as “A-level Tax-paying Enterprise” by National Tax Bureau of
Tonghua City and Local Tax Bureau Inland Revenue Department.
It was renowned as the "Tax Champion Enterprise” (" #9FiAk T
2£") by Huinan County Party Committee and County Government.
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (#E&ZB3) was named “Branded
Products of Jilin Province”.
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Looking ahead, the Company will formulate a development goal
to invigorate its business development to another boom cycle
in 2011, which will represent a “year of speedy growth”. The
Board of Directors believes that the Group will be well-positioned
to sustain more vivid growth in turnover and profit attributable to
equity holders in the future. All these moves reflect that the Board
of Directors is fully confident of the Group’s business expansion
and has developed a well-organized long-term plan.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
thanks to all levels of staff and the management for their efforts
and contributions in 2010 and my deep gratitude to our clients,
business partners and owners for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s turnover
increased to RMB200,630,000 from RMB152,766,000 while
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
increased to RMB35,891,000 from RMB22,076,000. For the year
ended 31 December 2010, basic earnings per share increased to
RMB6.41 cents from RMB3.94 cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the manufacturing and
sales of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (82 B =E%) continued to
be the Group's core source of revenue. The medicine of Hai
Kun Shen Xi capsule has penetrated into the market, the sales
of which rose by 43% as compared with 2009. The sales of
Compound Huonaoshu capsule (18 75 /& I &7 2 #) reached
RMB46,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010, which
became the second best seller of the Group in 2010. Other
products such as Yi Da La Feng injection ({&iERIZEF517R), Xue
Shuan Xin Mai Ning Capsule (Mm#%/C\k2825€), Dong Gui Long
Hui tablet (28 4), Qian Lie Gui Huang tablet (BIZIHEE )
also contributed more than sales amount of RMB21,000,000 in
2010, details of which were further elaborated under the Section
"Financial Review".

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company has
already obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1. Tablets (5 &l) — valid until 8 August 2015

2 Capsules (BB — valid until 8 August 2015

3 Granules (B8#7H) — valid until 25 January 2011

4. Solution (external use) (YMNFIEHE) — valid until 25 January
2011

5. Pill (Condensate) (=& 445 — valid until 25 January 2011
6. Sterile Bulk (Cefalotin sodium, Cefpiramide) (4 & B} 2
(SBTBEEM) 8R « BEFOUTAZ ) — valid until 8 August 2015

7. Pills (Water Pills), Membrane (,%|(7k3,) - BEHl) - valid
until 8 August 2015
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) R IR ST

8. Powder for injection (Cephalosporins) (
—valid until 23 August 2012

9. Lyophilized powder for injection (&2 #4381 Hl) - valid until 6
March 2011
10.  Small volume Parenteral Solution ({NB & E51H]) - valid

until 6 March 2011

11.  Sterile Bulk (Yan Suan Tou Bao Jia Tong) (& G} 2% ( Eafig
SEFR 5 ), Bulk (Yi Da La Feng) (R} ((RERZ) - valid
until 30 December 2013

12.  Bulk drug (Fucoidan, Extractum for fructus gardenlae)/&#}
BE(IERZEER - JETIREW)) — valid unit 14 September
2011

The Company received GMP site inspection during the
period from 1 March 2011 to 3 March 2011 and the
preliminary results of which is that the Company meets
the standards for GMP certificates.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential
for the future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past,
our R&D department had successfully developed the medicine,
Compound Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit
to the Company and finally led to the listing of the Company in
Hong Kong. In the year of 2003, our R&D department completed
the development of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule, which has now
become the first largest contributor of revenue and its revenue
jumped by 43% as compared with last year. Yi Da La Feng
Bulk has obtained the production approval, and Tou Bao Bulk
has commenced commercial production for the year ended 31
December 2010.

In addition to our internal R&D resources, the Group also
embarked on joint efforts with other reputable R&D companies
to develop new potential pharmaceutical products. As at 31
December 2010, the major products currently under research and
development were as follows:

Medicine
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PRODUCTION FACILITIES

In 2010, the Board reviewed all the production facilities,
and completed the renovation of two solid workshops, the
technological transformation of the production line of Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule (BE2EBZ[B%) and the improvement project of
the sewage treatment station.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s recorded a
revenue amounted to approximately RMB200,630,000 (2009:
RMB152,766,000), a growth of approximately 31% as compared
with the figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB35,891,000, representing an increase of 63% as compared
with RMB22,076,000 of the last year. The basic earnings per
share amounted to RMB6.41 cents (2009: RMB3.94 cents),
representing an increase of RMB2.47 cents over the previous
year.

The obvious growth in turnover was mainly attributable to the
increase in the revenue from our core revenue generator, namely
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (§R & Z B %). The medicine of Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule had penetrated into the market, with the sales of
which rising by 43% as compared with 2009.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the sales of Compound
Huonaoshu capsule amounted to approximately RMB46,000,000.

The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance
in 2010. It believes that the remarkable growth in profitability is
attributed to the following reasons.

Firstly, the sales volume of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule, being the
Group's leading products, relatively showcased a robust growth.
The Board believes that the revenue generated from Hai-Kun
Shen Xi capsule is expected to continue to grow by over 30%
commencing from this year.

Secondly, the Group continued to increase investment in
academic promotion and make greater intensity of efforts to
distribute products to medical institutions. Accordingly, our sales
network was further expanded.
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For instance, the Group took part in the Annual Meeting of the
National Society of Nephrology in Harbin and Hangzhou, as well
as some regional academic conferences. The Company also
sent professionals to hold seminars throughout the country and
received notable success. Through academic promotion activities,
the Group has not only upgraded its corporate image, but has also
tapped business opportunities and explored business networks. A
host of new clients from medical institutions in different regions
are sought by us through such meetings.

Thirdly, the Group's Ieading product line, namely Hai Kun Shen Xi
capsule (BEEEZR%), was included into the health insurance
directory of several provinces. Driven by the increased investment
in public health care by the country, the sales volume of the
leading hospital clinical products grew remarkably.

Fourthly, the Group continued to implement the plan of recruiting
temporary sales staff in line with its needs, in order to assist
regional sales staff in expanding their sales network, and in
hence, to capture and secure a larger share in the hospital clinical
sales markets.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December
2010 was approximately 79%, representing a 5% increase as
compared with that of 74% for the year ended 31 December
2009.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB6,101,000, contrasting to
a figure of RMB7,059,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Distribution and selling costs rose to approximately
RMB94,306,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010 from
approximately RMB77,684,000 in last year. These expenses
accounted for 47% of turnover in 2010, which represented a
4% decrease from 51% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The increase in distribution and selling costs
of approximately RMB16,624,000 was mainly due to the growth
in staff remuneration as a result of the recruitment of temporary
sales persons. The Board believes that the distribution and selling
costs which represented 47% of the turnover was acceptable for
a pharmaceutical manufacturing company.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, administrative expenses
increased to approximately RMB26,307,000 from approximately
RMB20,518,000 last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWR D

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this
year. As at 31 December 2010, cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to RMB97,559,000 (2009: RMB43,490,000)
with long-term borrowings of RMB6,690,000 (2009:
RMB6,990,000) which were interest bearing at commercial rates
and unsecured. As at 31 December 2010, the Group had total
assets of RMB379,671,000 (2009: RMB335,793,000) which
were financed by current liabilities of RMB81,047,000 (2009:
RMB71,322,000), long term borrowings of RMB6,690,000 (2009:
RMB6,990,000), deferred tax liabilities of RMB956,000 (2009:
RMB1,499,000) and shareholders’ equity of RMB291,614,000
(2009: RMB255,982,000).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB97,559,000. As at 31 December 2010, the
ratio of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was
23% (2009: 24%) which was calculated by dividing the Group's
total liabilities of RMB88,057,000 (2009: RMB79,811,0000) by
the Group's total equity and liabilities of RMB379,671,000 (2009:
RMB335,793,000). The Group's gearing ratio which derived from
the total borrowings to total assets was 1.76% (2009: 2%).

EMPLOYEES

The Group has a total of 406 full-time employees and has
employed some temporary sales persons. For the year ended
31 December 2010, the total remuneration of employees,
including directors’ remuneration amounting to approximately
RMB45,905,000 (2009: approximately RMB38,018,000).

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contribution. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme and medical scheme.

'I 2 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEEGE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 56, male, is the Chairman, general manager and secretary
of the Party committee. He holds a bachelor degree and is a
senior economist. His previous positions are as follows: He was a
teacher and the secretary of Youth League Committee of Huinan
No. 4 Middle School from September 1978 to October 1983;
he worked in county and town governments from November
1983 to September 1989, during which he held the position of
deputy town head; he has been the Chairman, general manager
and secretary of the Party committee of Jilin Province Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited since October 1989.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 47, male, is an executive director and deputy general
manager. He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist.
He held the positions of the secretary of Youth League
Committee of Chaoyang town engineer affairs equipment factory
of Shenyang railway bureau from July 1983 to September 1989;
deputy director of foreign trade bureau of Huinan County from
October 1989 to November 1990; executive director and deputy
general manager of the Company since December 1990.

Tian Xin Guo

Aged 54, male, is an executive director and deputy secretary of
the Party committee. He holds a master degree and is a senior
economist. He acted as the Secretary of the Ministry of Public
Transportation and the Economics and Trading Committee in
Huinan County from December 1979 to September 1984; studied
in the Jilin Province Radio and Television University for associate
degree from October 1984 to September 1986; from October
1986 to November 1986, has was general officer of Huinan
County government office; from December 1986 to March 1990,
the Chief of the Transportation Management Office in Huinan
County and the Secretary of the Party Branch; from April 1990
to September 1995, the Deputy Director of the Transportation
Bureau in Huinan County; from October 1995 to September 1999,
the Director of the State-owned Assets Management Bureau;
from October 1999 to October 2001, the Director of the Planning
Bureau in Huinan County; from November 2001 to May 2007,
the district manager, deputy secretary of the Party committee
and secretary of discipline committee of Huinan Changlong Bio—
pharmacy Company and on 9 August 2007, he commenced to
perform his duties of executive director and district manager,
deputy secretary of the Party committee and secretary of
discipline committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEEGE

Chen Qi Ming

Aged 53, male, is an executive director and a senior economist
with a bachelor degree. From October 1978 to July 1982, he
studied in Jilin Agriculture University; from August 1982 to
October 1989, he worked in Economics and Trading Committee
and Heavy Industries Bureau in Huinan County; from November
1989 to October 1995, he worked in Agricultural Machinery
Bureau and Agricultural Bureau of the county; from November
1995 to April 2002, acted as director of Technology Bureau; from
May 2002 to August 2007, worked as district manager of Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company; commenced to perform his
duties of executive director and district manager of the Company
on 9 August 2007.

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 46, male, is an executive director and chief engineer. He
holds a master degree and is a Pharmacist-in-charge and senior
engineer. From July 1984 to August 1986, he studied in Shanxi
Province Herbal School; from September 1986 to August 1988,
he acted as director of quality inspection department of herbal
medicine company in Huinan County; from September 1988 to
August 1991, he studied in Shanghai Medicine University; from
September 1991 to January 1993, he acted as district manager
of Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company; from February 1993 to
May 1996, he pursued master degree in Jilin University; from
June 1996 to August 2007, he acted as chief engineer of Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and commenced to perform
his duties of executive director and chief engineer on 9 August
2007.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 44, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer.
He holds an associate degree and is a certified accountant,
certified estimator and senior economist. From July 1987 to July
1990, he studied in Jilin Finance and Tax Training School; from
August 1990 to May 1995, he acted as director of Finance Bureau
of Huinan County; from August 1996 to December 2006, he held
the position of director and equipment director of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and was
appointed as director and chief finance officer of the Company in
March 2007.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEEGE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Shen Yu Xiang

Aged 60, male, is an independent non-executive director. From
April 1984 to October 1995, he acted as deputy director of
Finance Bureau of Huinan County; from November 1995 to
October 1998, he worked as dean of Finance and Trade Office
of Huinan County; from November 1998 to December 2000,
he acted as director of Audit Bureau of Huinan County and was
appointed as independent director of the Company since 2001.

Xue Chang Qing

Aged 49, male, is an independent non-executive director with
a bachelor degree and is a senior auditor, international certified
internal auditor, certified accountant, certified assets estimator
and certified tax agent. From September 1978 to September
1981, he studied in Changchun Machinery Industrial School
majoring in machinery manufacture; from September 1981 to
May 1988, he acted as accountant of Changchun Printing and
Dyeing Factory; from May 1988 to January 2006, he worked
as accountant, internal auditor, senior auditor and deputy dean
of finance office of Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry
Chinese Academy of Sciences; since January 2006, he has acted
as dean of assessment department of Jilin Jinshi Certified Public
Accountants Company Limited. He commenced to perform his
duties of independent director of the Company on 9 August 2007.

Yan Li Jin

Aged 56, male, is an independent non-executive director and
holds a master degree. From March 1977 and January 1980,
he studied in Politics and History Department of Si Ping Normal
University; from July 1994 to July 1997, he studied in History
Department of Northeast Normal University; from January 1998
to March 2000, pursued master degree in Northeast Normal
University; from January 1980 to July 1993, he worked as teacher
and dean of students of Huinan No.1 Middle School; from
August 1993 to January 1997, he acted as principal of Huinan
No.1 Middle School and commenced to perform his duties of
independent director of the Company on 9 August 2007.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEEGE

SUPERVISORS

Zhang Jing Zhou

Aged 62, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in March 1995.
He has acted as the Chairman of labour union and supervisory
committee of the Company since 1996.

Wu Wei Men

Aged 41, male, graduated from Dandong Textile Training School
with associated degree in industrial accounting in 1991. From
1991 to 2004, he worked as finance director of hardware factory
of Huinan County. He joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in 2004 and
has acted as supervisor of the Company since 9 August 2007.

Li Bao Hai

Aged 54, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in July 1990.
He worked as an electrician and dean of electricity distribution
office. He has acted as the Supervisor of the Company since
1996.

'I 6 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2010

E=x
50 625% 19953 A MNAKEELLE - 1996F 14
FRAIEER  EBTER -

REER

B M5 199N FEERRSHBERERTE
G EE - KHEF - 1991~2004F £ &R
ERAFBEE - 2004F INAKEELLZE - 20074
SAOHIAEARIES -

ZEE
B 645%  1990F7ANMAREZE  ©IE
T BEEITF - 1996FBERRES o



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEEGE

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 31, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in commerce. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 7
years of experience in auditing and accounting.

Zhang Yan Jun

Aged 45, male, holds an associate degree and is the secretary of
the board of Directors and senior economist. From August 1985
to October 1995, he worked as director of finance department
of the Second Light Industrial Bureau of Huinan County; from
November 1995 to October 1996, director of production
department of economy and trade committee of Huinan County;
from November 1996 to July 2007, deputy secretary of the Party
committee of Huinan Taitai Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and
the chairman of Supervisory Committee. He has acted as dean of
security department of Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited since August 2007 and secretary of the board of directors
since November 2009.

Yang Ze Shu

Aged 43, male, graduated from Yanbian Medical College in 1992
with a bachelor degree. He is Chief Quality Officer and chief
pharmacist and senior engineer. From 1992 to 1999, he acted as
dean of Pharmaceutical office of Institute for Drug Control. He has
worked as Chief Quality Officer of the Company since 2000.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRES

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2010.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law,
the Company was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to
a limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval
of the Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province,
the Company was further converted into a joint stock limited
company. On 20 April 1999, the Company made a bonus issue
from capitalisation of retained profits at the proportion of one
bonus share for every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC under the brand
names of Changlong and Shendi. There were no changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the
manufacture and distribution of biochemical medicines in the
PRC. In 2010, turnover of the Group was generated entirely
from sales in the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no business or geographical
segmental analysis is prepared for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 38 to 110.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRES

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the
notes below. This summary is not part of the audited financial
statements.

BBERBE

NI RAEEERNHEEUAREERBEZH
E - DR TXMEMSELERR TR IBL

BRI -

Results E45
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Turnover | 200,630 152,766
Profit before income tax T AT 43,282 21,998
Income tax (expense)/credit B, He (7,391) 78
Profit for the year from ordinary activities REERERBABEAE
attributable to owners of the Company EREHEA 35,891 22,076
Assets and liabilities EERAEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREFT
Total assets BEE 379,671 335,793
Total liabilities wafE (88,057) (79,811)
Net assets FEE 291,614 255,982
BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY, TRBEVEE W% BMERRKEU

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property,
plant and equipment, and intangible assets of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to
the financial statements respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRES

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group made no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year ended 31
December 2010. Save as described in note 35 to the financial
statements, as at 31 December 2010, the Group had no other
future plans for material investments or significant changes in
capital assets of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
20 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Particulars of borrowings of the Group and the Company are set
out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by
shareholders’ equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury
policy of placing the Group's cash and cash equivalents in interest
bearing deposits, and to fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and in Note 33 to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2010, the reserves of the Company available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to
approximately RMB161,977,000 (2009: RMB131,972,000).
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRES

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 16% of its goods to its five
largest customers (2009: 18%) and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for 6% (2009: 7%) of the Group's total
sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five
largest suppliers accounted for about 37% (2009: 35%) of the
Group's total purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers
therein accounted for 12% (2009: 8%) of the Group's total
purchases.

None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who,
to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and five largest suppliers noted
above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group
mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi. The directors consider the impact on
foreign exchange exposure of the Group is minimal. Accordingly
the Group did not employ any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2010 are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRES

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Tian Xin Guo

Mr. Chen Qi Ming

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Liang Fu Xiang (Resigned on 15 November 2010)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang

Mr. Xue Chang Qing

Mr. Yan Li Jin

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Jing Zhou
Mr. Wu Wei Men
Mr. Li Bao Hai

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of
the annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note
14 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had
entered into any service contract or letter of appointment with
the Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRES

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

At 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

ESRESRENhzERE

EENFABEREARRHEMBATHER—T7
BHAEENEBEEENEMNANTHREREE
HEEMNEAE SR

BE - HEIEE LHES

FA - AARIKEAMBARMEREE - BEE
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ﬁB)E'JHxT - HEERRD REFT A IRIEE %&Hﬂ
E1&PIE35215 B AT E A=

KA FIREBE R AR AR E ﬁim%ﬁﬁu(ra\l%
RETRE)FE 4615 EE67IKFTIEEFEER

pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as  {KIZ¥EMBMNE AN N 7 KB TRy KA B N
referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing T :
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) were as follows:
Long positions in shares RBROHNRE
Percentage of
Percentage of total registered
Type of Number of Domestic Share Capital
Director Interests Capacity Domestic Shares Shares {EAZMERAER
- Rz R 514 RNEREE HRERBS L WEZDL
Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
EEIN EA EmfEAA
Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
oREE ELA EmEB A
Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
REI EA EmfEAA
Chen Qi Ming Personal Beneficial owner 300,000 0.077 0.054
GAEGE EA EmEB A
iﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ‘%i{tﬁ%{l’% BRAR 23
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EEGHRES

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and
supervisors' interests in shares” above, at no time during the
year were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any director, supervisor and chief executive or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors, supervisors and chief executives to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2010, the following persons (other than the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

B EXFREEEIN R F+ _A=+—
B ARAEE BEENTIETBRASHRERAE
RAREAEAREER ER R E 5 LB RIS
XVED) Bty ~ AR REFTHEAREE S
K BB ARG 236215 - B ARZIGAT AL E R
BELRR - FARBRIZER EWMRAES4616E
.67IRFTEESEEREREMAMEARA R
B FTERE R BURA ©
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S BEFR  BEERIZTBRAERKEZEN
BT N\BRAT F AR EERSITEEMES
BAXRRRMHEFMERA @ 2 - MA
DA HERARREAFME R RERZE
M REE BEERTIBTHRABRNMEM
HAEBEBAZ SRR -

REFFRPERGIATRENERR
FERR
RIB-—TF+-A=+—0  RREADARE

TALT(ARAEE EEREBTBRABRKRIN)
WA B KRR PR A s KR

Long positions in shares RERAHRE
Percentage of
Number of Percentage of  total registered
Capacity/Nature Domestic of Domestic Share Capital
Name of shareholder of Interest Shares Shares {HAZMR AR
BRREH 51, REEME RNEREE HRERBSEH WEZE
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

IBEBMRIEEERETAG(ME) B=mHEBA

Note:  Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB  A/i# - BRAMEARQRIRIIR AR N - 18R GEHRIEE BR

does not have any direct or indirect interest in the Company, including
representatives in the Board of Directors.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and
the Company were entered into or were in existence during the
year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the
significant shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had any
interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article
of association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was established, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party
transactions, which constituted connected transactions under the
GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the
employer’s staff retirement costs charged to the profit and
loss account for the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
as set out in Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide
supervision over the financial reporting procedures and internal
control system of the Group.

The committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters,
including a review of the audited results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out on page 111 of the annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 27 to 34 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to Annual General Meeting of the
company to re-appoint the auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK)
CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong

Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2011
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practice (the “Code"”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2010 subject to the deviations disclosed hereof.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required
standard of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific enquiry of all
Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors throughout the year
ended 31 December 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Tian Xin Guo

Mr. Chen Qi Ming

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Liang Fu Xiang (Resigned on 15 November 2010)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang

Mr. Xue Chang Qing

Mr. Yan Li Jin

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised nine Directors,
six of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are INEDs of
the Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each
Director are set out on the section headed "Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management" of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and
interim results, succession planning, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board of Directors
to the management include the preparation of annual and
interim accounts for Board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules
and regulations. Executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.
The INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent
judgement on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board
meeting.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience
to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is
independent in character and judgement. The Company
has received from each INED a written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group's business development,
operation and financial performance. Board papers are circulated
not less than 7 days before the Board meetings to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at
the board meetings. Minutes of board meetings are kept be the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the
Board.
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Board meetings
During the year, seven regular board meetings were held. Details
of the attendance of the Directors are as follows:—

Directors 5=

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) RoAFCE(FSE)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SRR S

Mr. Tian Xin Guo BB L&

Mr. Chen Qi Ming PRESRA ST

Mr. Wu Guo Wen REI -
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang HHE M S

Mr. Liang Fu Xiang RIEHE

(Resigned on 15 November 2010)

Independent Non-Executive Directors BWUIEHMITES
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang L ERESE
Mr. Xue Chang Qing EBERBNE
Mr. Yan Li Jin g et

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the
Board of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The Directors
will receive details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability
and independent decision making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of
Independent Non-executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access
to the Company’s external auditors and independent
professional advice when considered necessary.
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of
the Company and has considerable industry experience. He is
motivated to contribute to the growth and profitability of the
Group. The Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of
the Group to have an executive chairman so that the Board can
have the benefit of a chairman who is knowledgeable about the
business of the Group and is most capable to guide discussions
and brief the Board in a timely manner on pertinent issues and
developments to facilitate open dialogue between the Board and
the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and
sufficient experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as
to protect the interests of shareholders. Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, Mr.
Xue Chang Qing and Mr. Yan Li Jin are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs
are appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of
office shall continue after the expiration of the initial term until at
least 1 month’s prior written notice is given by either party or the
Company to terminate the same.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report,
the chairman of the committee is Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, an INED,
and other members include Mr. Xue Chang Qing, and Mr. Zhang
Hong, the majority being INEDs. The remuneration committee
schedules meet at least once a year and the quorum necessary
for the transaction of business is two.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2010, the
Remuneration Committee held two meeting. The individual
attendance records of each member are as follows:

Members 24=1

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) ILERERAE(FRE)
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERBNE

Mr. Zhang Hong sRaASEAE

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the
Directors and members of senior management, and discussed
the remuneration policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of
the Executive Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs.
The Remuneration Committee of the Company considers that
the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs are fair and
reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
according to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with
written terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities include
reviewing and supervising the framework, number of members
and composition of the Board and making proposals to the Board
in respect of any changes and identifying and nominating suitable
persons for appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises of one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and
two INEDs, Mr. Xue Chang Qing and Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, which is
in compliance with the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules that
INEDs should form the majority of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Nomination procedures include identification and
acknowledgement of qualified individuals by the Nomination
Committee, and review and approval of such nominations by
the Board. The Nomination Committee will evaluate potential
candidates considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2010, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings. During the meeting, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed and discussed the
framework, number of members and composition of the Board.
Also, the Nomination Committee has identified and made
proposals in respect of the outstanding appointment of Executive
Directors and INEDs. The individual attendance records of each
member are as follows:

Members RE

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) LR (L)
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERBTE

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SRR S

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010. Other than
annual auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA
Limited did not provide non-auditing services to the Company or
any of the Group's companies during the year.

Auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2010 is
set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently
comprises three members, Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, Mr. Xue Chang
Qing and Mr. Yan Li Jin. All of them are INEDs. The chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Shen Yu Xiang. The Board considers
that each Audit Committee has broad commercial experience and
there is a suitable mix of expertise in business, legal, accounting
and financial management in the Audit Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal
financial interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross—
directorships or day-to-day involvement in the running of the
business. The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
process and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. During the year, the Audit Committee
carried out their own independent review of the interim and
annual financial statements and financial reports and statements
included in circulars of the company published during the
year. And with the assistance of the internal audit department,
which reports directly to the committee, the Audit Committee
completed its review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's systems of internal control and reported its findings
and recommendations to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the audit committee
meetings are as follows:

Members 24=1

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) ERFEE
Mr. Xue Chang Qing ERBTE
Mr. Yan Li Jin BigeikaE

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 December 2010 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results were complied with
the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosure have been made.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and shall ensure that
the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company,
Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 36 and 37 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal
control system. The Company convened meeting periodically
to discuss financial , operational and risk management control.
The Directors are of the view that the existing system of internal
control is effective and adequate to the Group.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive
information about the company’s activities is provided in
the Annual Report and the Interim Report which are sent
to shareholders. There is regular dialogue with institutional
investors. Enquiries from individuals on matters relating to their
shareholdings and the business of the company are welcomed
and are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which all directors and Committee chairs are available
for questions. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
Annual General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take
necessary actions to ensure compliance with the required
practices and standards including the provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

ESgWREE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China with limited liabilities)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company (the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory
Committee of the Company exercised conscientiously its
authority, safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and the Company, and followed the principle of honesty
and integrity and worked cautiously and diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice
on the operations and development plans to the Directors and
strictly and effectively monitored whether the policies of the
Company had conformed with the relevant rules and regulations
or safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial
statements of the Company give a true and fair picture of
the operating results and asset position of the Company. We
also consider that the Report of the Directors and the profit
distribution proposal meet the relevant rules and regulations. We
have attended the meeting of the Board. We are of the opinion
that the meeting was convened in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. We consider that the members of the
Board, the general manager and other senior management of
the Company have strictly complied with the principle of honesty
and trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely exercised
their authority to the best interests of the Company. None of
the Directors, general manager nor other senior management of
the company have abused their powers, caused damage to the
interests of the Company and infringed upon the interests of the
Company shareholders and its staff, nor have they violated the
relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the
cost-effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the
Company will have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Zhang Jing Zhou
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2011
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZHENHRESE

R‘g REANDA LAU & AU YEUNG

NZZEEE (58) SMBEBAERAR

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China with limited liabilities)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 38 to 110, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2010, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

36 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZHENHRESE

R‘ REANDA LAU & AU YEUNG

NZZEEE (58) STMBEBAERAR

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai
Director
Practising Certificate number P1886

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AREEERBARER

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE-F—FEf A —ALEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBEZET)
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz ARET T AREEFTT
Turnover BER 4 200,630 152,766
Cost of sales SHERR (42,658) (39,352)
Gross profit E5 157,972 113,414
Other income HbUg A 6 5,655 6,881
Other gains H bk 25 7 446 178
Distribution and selling costs DN ERY (94,306) (77,684)
Administrative expenses THAX (26,307) (20,518)
Profit from operations el 43,460 22,271
Finance costs BhE AN 8 (178) (273)
Profit before income tax FRLEF 9 43,282 21,998
Income tax (expense)/credit RE(ZH), Ee 10(a) (7,391) 78
Profit for the year INEE %A 35,891 22,076
Other comprehensive income: HithZ2EKA -
Exchange differences on translating ~ #E /GINEFSFTIEL 2
foreign operations fEHZ% = 41
Total comprehensive income for KEEZEBRALEE
the year 35,891 22,117
Profit attributable to: DU FE(RSEF
Owners of the Company ViN/NETETZEN 35,891 22,076
Total comprehensive income UTEEZEBRALLE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AKATHEB A 35,891 22,117
Earnings per share BRAF
— Basic (RMB cents) —ERNARESD) 11 6.41 3.94
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — B&FT 2 MisEB A IS TRFT LB 2 — 25 ©

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SREERER

As at 31 December 2010
R-ZF—FFf+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBEEZET)
2010 2009
—E-EF —EThF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
k3 AR¥TT AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Bearer biological assets TRBEMEE 16 2,504 2,169
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR E 17 55,330 60,554
Prepaid land lease payments SEEL N ab: o Eheia 18 2,223 2,348
Construction in progress EEIR 19 28,959 26,399
Intangible assets mEE 21 24,135 33,350
Deposit for acquisition of land use Uiy B+ b 50 P 4
rights b a 22 10,000 10,000
Other receivables, deposits and HabERERS - sl &TE
prepayments NG 26 5,100 -
128,251 134,820
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 23,303 20,729
Trade receivables FEWE 5 B8R 3K 25 91,323 81,242
Other receivables, deposits and HihEWBER - 5T &
prepayments TE 3R 26 21,318 26,663
Loans receivables FERER 27 15,793 18,150
Prepaid land lease payments EN LS 18 125 125
Income tax recoverable Al E TS - 10,574
Available-for-sale financial assets B ERBKEE 24 2,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSEED 28 97,559 43,490
251,421 200,973
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables R SRR 29 6,879 6,708
Other payables, deposits received H A A FOE
and accruals BT MEFE A 64,123 56,069
Income tax payable FETFR1S R 914 -
Other tax payables HAth pE S 18 8,166 8,200
Borrowings BE 30 636 -
Dividend payable FETRR B 330 345
81,048 71,322
Net current assets REBEEZFE 170,373 129,651
Total assets less current liabilities #@&EERREEE 298,624 264,471
EMEEEREECEEROERAT 39
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEBEEARER
As at 31 December 2010
R-ZFE—FFf+-_H=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBEZET)
2010 2009
—E-—FF ZEENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ok AR®T T AREF T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings ==y 30 6,054 6,990
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIERE 31 956 1,499
7,010 8,489
Net assets EEFE 291,614 255,982
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO AATHEE ANEER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Share capital i 32 56,025 56,025
Reserves e 235,589 199,957
Total equity SR 291,614 255,982

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue ~ ZEPERER T ——F_A=ZTHEEZESS

by the board of directors on 30 March 2011. B AR o
ZHANG HONG ZHANG XIAO GUANG
R34 RN
Director Director
Ea=a E=a

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — B&HT 2 st B AT IS MERBE 2 — 2D -
statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEBEX

As at 31 December 2010
R-F—FFf—H=1—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZR)
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bz ARET T ARETTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Bearer biological assets TRBEMEE 16 2,504 2,169
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 17 55,330 60,550
Prepaid land lease payments N TS 18 2,223 2,348
Construction in progress EEIR 19 28,959 26,399
Interests in subsidiaries S INEPNGIE oL F 20 10,500 8,865
Intangible assets mILEE 21 24,135 33,350
Deposit for acquisition of land use W B8 + Hb {5 PR 4
rights bk 22 10,000 10,000
Other receivables, deposits and EmElEREs - flek
prepayments TEfTFRIE 26 5,100 -
138,751 143,681
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 23,303 20,729
Trade receivables FEUWE 5 BR R 25 105,959 94,959
Other receivables, deposits and EmEWEREs - slek
prepayments TETFIB 26 20,906 26,560
Loans receivables EWE R 27 15,793 18,150
Prepaid land lease payments N TS 18 125 125
Income tax recoverable AT B AT 1S R - 10,574
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEHENBEE 24 2,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents B MReEHEY 28 92,472 38,667
260,558 209,764
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B SR 29 6,879 6,708
Other payables, deposits received EfpEsRIE - B
and accruals e MEETE R 63,721 55,736
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE 20 9,990 5,000
Income tax payable FERTFTISEL 914 -
Other tax payables E bR 7,487 7,707
Borrowings BE 30 636 -
Dividend payable FERT IR B 330 345
89,957 75,496
Net current assets REBEEFEE 170,601 134,268
Total assets less current liabilities #EERREAME 309,352 277,949
EMEREREE(CRER

=
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Balance Sheet

EEAEBR

As at 31 December 2010
R —E—FFEAf—H=F—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBEZET)
2010 2009
—e-8F _—TINF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz ARET T ARETTT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE 30 6,054 6,990
Deferred tax liabilities ELFEIEA G 31 956 1,499
7,010 8,489
Net assets EEFRE 302,342 269,460
EQUITY R
Share capital ik 32 56,025 56,025
Reserves B 33 246,317 213,435
Total equity XA 302,342 269,460

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue ~ ZEMBREIN _ZE——F=A=THEZEFS

by the board of directors on 30 March 2011. o R REEA o
ZHANG HONG ZHANG XIAO GUANG
(LN RN
Director Director
E BEZE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial P& 2 [T B AN ERFz/EBE 2 — 250 ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BEr_FE—FFE+_H=+—HILFF

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANEEZT)
Statutory
Share Exchange surplus Retained
Share capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
B REE BN AERHRE REEA &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
(Note 32)  (Note 33(al) (Note 33)  (Note 33(b))
(i32)  (MFEE33(a)) (Mzk33)  (RizE33lo))
Balance at 1 January 2009 R-EZThE-F-A2
e 56,025 51,098 218 27,184 99,340 233,865
Comprehensive income  2ERA
Profit for the year AERHR - - - - 22,076 22,076
Other comprehensive Htt2EKA

income
Exchange differences on  HEENERHFELY

translating overseas ERER

operations - - M - - 4
Total comprehensive income 2 EYA 2% - - 41 - 22,076 217
Appropriation to statutory R EETREHBEE

surplus reserve - - - 3,181 (3,181) -
At 31 December 2009 RZZTNE

+ZA=1+-AH 56,025 51,098 259 30,365 118,235 255,982
Balance at 1 January 2010  R=-Z-ZF—-fF—-F7

B 56,025 51,098 259 30,365 118,235 255,982
Comprehensiveincome  2FEWA
Profit for the year RERRF - - - - 35,891 35,891
Other comprehensive HipzEKA

income
Disposal of a subsidiary ~ HENBERAR (F:23)

(Note 35) - - (259) - - (259)
Total comprehensive income 2EMALE - - (259) - 35,891 35,632
Appropriation to statutory  HREEEREAGEE

surplus reserve - - - 2,871 (2.877) -
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-TF

+ZA=+-A 56,025 51,098 - 33,242 151,249 291,614
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — BEM 2 T B AT Bz EE 2 —55 -
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

z'_:l‘-_— A i — 1

wh 3 }Eﬁl)lbiﬂ%

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BEr_FE—FFE+_H=+—HILFF

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AANRBEZT)
2010 2009
—E-BF —ETNEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mzt AR®T ARBTT
Cash from operating activities RETHEECZRSRE
Profit before income tax BB R AT A A 43,282 21,998
Adjustments for: FHEIBE :
Interest income FIBWA 6 (2,990) (309)
Yield gain on available-for-sale AHHENBERE
financial assets BTG 6 (39) -
Interest expenses MEXH 8 178 273
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving BENEHTERE
inventories 9 2,864 -
Additional provision for impairment ENES  HibfEu
loss on trade, other receivables and tax R R AU EIFTER
recoverable AEEBEE 9 9,284 7,943
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 9 7,255 8,099
Impairment loss on intangible assets BREERNBER 9 1,960 1,230
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - BEREE
equipment REEE 9 705 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments B LA 9 125 125
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W¥ - BEREE
nE 9 5,955 6,089
Fair value loss/(gain) on biological EMEE-BATERE
assets — deers J/(BH) 7 38 (101)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEX
equipment REBEF 7 (271) (77)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERBA KR 7 (213) -
Government subsidy ISR 6 (2,320) (708)
Operating cash flows before working HEES A LR
capital changes BEenhe 65,813 44,562
Increase in inventories FEEM (5,438) (1,754)
Increase in trade receivables B E BRI N (12,802) (14,728)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, HibElzE  sTe Rk
deposits and prepayments BAFEGEM), D (2,774) 8,271
Decrease/(increase) in loans receivable ERER D,/ (Em) 2,357 (15,150)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables ENE SETIEM/ (i) 171 (5,367)
Increase in other payables, HiEMAFUR - BYGI 2
deposits received and accruals RETER ZEm 8,054 9,084
Decrease in other tax payables H b e B R (34) (5,038)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEEREER B = 41
Cash generated from operations CEEBEL VRS 55,347 19,921
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_FE—FFE+_H=+—HILFF

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBEEZET)
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mzt AR®T ARBTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELECHERE
Cash generated from operations REEEEL 7S 55,347 19,921
Interest paid EAFE 8 (178) (273)
PRC income tax paid BRFBAER = (5,251)
Net cash generated from operating activities Q& TZHELHETE 55,169 14,397
Cash flows from investing activities RELBELEZRERE
Purchase of bearer biological assets BETDEENEE 16 (373) (695)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE 21 - (1,850)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEREHE 17 (1,157) (1,039)
Purchase of construction in progress BEERIRE 19 (3,009) (17,343)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEAHLENKEE 24 (20,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of bearer biological assets & 24 4 W& E B IE 16 = 17
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEREE
equipment FT3 508 334 170
Proceeds from disposal of construction in progress &2 TI2FT1E 1B 19 107 -
Proceeds from settlement of available-for-sale HETH-EEHBEEE
financial assets P33R 24 18,000 -
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBA (36) -
Interest received [SL &S 6 2,990 309
Yield gain on available-for-sale financial assets AT E B E 6 39 -
Net cash used in investing activities REERFARSFE (3,105) (20,431)
Cash flows from financing activities MEXKELZHERE
Proceeds from government subsidy B Rk TS kR 6 2,320 708
Repayment of borrowings BEER 30 (300) -
Dividends paid BRI (15) (15)
Net cash generated from financing activities FELEELHETE 2,005 693
Net increase /(decrease) in cash and IE%}SUR%%{E%
cash equivalents #im/ (RA)F 54,069 (5,341)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £ R&RBEELEEY 43,490 48,831
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREASREASEEY 97,559 43,490
Analysis of the balance of cash and BERBSEEY
cash equivalents BB
Cash and bank balances Be RBITHS 97,559 43,490

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial ~ B&Mff Z MisE B A iz BiE 22— -
statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned
enterprise in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC")
in 1989. On 29 December 1995, under the relevant
provisions of the Company Law of the PRC, the Company
was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a
limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the
approval of the Economic Restructuring Commission
of Jilin Province, the Company was further converted
into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999,
the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of
retained profits in the proportion of one bonus share for
every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May
2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture
and distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC
under the brand names of Changlong and Shendi. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note
20.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") (which includes
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and
Interpretation) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Company Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by certain biological assets and available-
for-sale financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
In 2010, the Group adopted the new and amended
standards, interpretations to the published
standards and the improvements to HKFRS which
are relevant to its operation.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial

statements

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of financial
statements

HKAS 17 (Amendment) Leases

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate
financial statements
HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Investments in associates

HKAS 31 (Amendments)  Interests in joint ventures

HKAS 36 (Amendments)  Unit of accounting for goodwill
impairment test

Group cash-settled share-based
payment transaction

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations

2.
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48

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

Except for certain changes in the presentation
and disclosure of financial information as
described below, the adoption of the above new
and amended standards, interpretations and
improvements do not have a significant effect on
the financial statements or result in any significant
changes to the Group’s significant accounting
policies.

0]

HKFRS 3 (revised), “"Business
combinations”, and consequential
amendments to HKAS 27, “Consolidated
and separate financial statements”, HKAS
28, "Investments in associates”, and
HKAS 31, “Interests in joint ventures”,
are effective prospectively to business
combination for which the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period commencing 1 July 2009.

The revised standard continues to apply
the acquisition method to business
combinations but with some significant
changes compared with HKFRS 3. For
example, all payments to purchase a
business are recorded at fair value at the
acquisition date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-
measured through the income statement.
For the accounting of non-controlling
interest, it should be considered on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. There is
a choice to measure the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets. When a
business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquirer should measure its previously
held interest in the acquiree at fair value on
the date control is obtained, recognising a
gain or loss in the income statement. All
acquisition-related costs are expensed.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)
(b) Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

0]

(ii)

(continued)

As the Group has adopted HKFRS 3
(revised), it is required to adopt HKAS
27 (revised) at the same time. HKAS
27 (revised) requires the effects of all
transactions with non-controlling interests
to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions
will no longer give rise to any goodwill or
gains or losses. The standard also specifies
the accounting treatment when control
is lost whereby any remaining interest in
the entity is re-measured at fair value, and
a gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement.

HKFRS 2 (Amendment), “Group cash-
settled share-based payment transaction”.
The amendment incorporates HK(IFRIC) —
Int 8, “Scope of HKFRS 2", and HK(IFRIC)
—Int 11, "HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury
share transactions”. The amendment
clarifies that an entity that receives goods
or services in a share-based payment
arrangement must recognise, in its separate
financial statements, an expense for those
goods or services regardless of which entity
in the group settles the transaction and the
form of settlement (ie, in shares or in cash).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
Certain new and amended standards,
interpretations to the published standards and
improvements to HKFRS are mandatory for
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January
2011 or later periods. The Group was not required
to adopt these new and amended standards,
interpretations and improvements in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.
The new and amended standards, interpretations
and improvements that are relevant to the Group’s
operation are as follows:
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Clarification of statement of
changes in equity
Consolidated and separate
financial statements
Interim financial reporting

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKAS 34 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible hedged items

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)  First-time adoption of HKFRS

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Clarifications of disclosures

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new and amended
standards, interpretations and improvements
but is not yet in a position to state whether they
would have a significant impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company'’s balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Transactions with non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Biological assets

Biological assets are living animals and plants
managed by the Group which is involved in the
agricultural activities of the transformation of
biological assets for sale or into agricultural product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs at initial recognition
and at each balance sheet date. The fair value
of these biological assets is determined based
on active market prices in the local market with
reference to comparable age, breed and genetic
merit. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition
and subsequent changes in fair values less
estimated point-of-sale costs of biological assets is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
it arise. Biological assets that are in the stage of
cultivation or do not have a quoted market price in
an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are recognised in the balance
sheet at cost less any impairment losses.
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54

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs
are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs or revalued amounts
to their residual value over their estimated useful
lives. The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years

equipment

An assets carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on the disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the income statement of
comprehensive income.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at historical cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(i)

(i)
(i)

(ii)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and equipment under construction and
pending installation, and is stated at historical cost
less any impairment losses. No depreciation is
made on construction in progress until such time
as the relevant property, plants and equipment are
available for use. Cost comprises all construction
expenditure and other direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when the asset being constructed
becomes available to use.

Intangible assets

Purchased know-how and prescription
Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is charged
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, which range from 5 to 12 years from the date
of commercial production. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each balance sheet date, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the financial period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development
costs are stated at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
begins when development is completed and the
assets is available for use. Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
financial period in which it is incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(i)
(iii)

(k)

n

Intangible assets (continued)

Purchased in-process research and
development assets acquired through
separate purchase

In-process research and development assets
acquired through separate purchase are recognised
as intangible assets at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (i) above.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for
example, goodwill or intangible assets not ready to
use — are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset'’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average cost formula. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICES (continued)

(m)

(i)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets

Classification

The group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, and available for
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of tis
financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”, "loan
receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in
the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or management
intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the
end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(m)

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date
on which the group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in the
income statement within “other (losses)/gains —
net” in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income statement
as part of other income when the group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as “gains and losses from
investment securities”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICES (continued)

(m) Financial assets (continued)

(i)  Recognition and measurement (continued)
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the income statement as part
of other income when the group’s right to receive
payments is established.

(iii)  Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss
include:

° Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

° The Group, for economic or legal reasons

relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that
the lender would not otherwise consider;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(m)

(iii)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

° It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

o The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

o Observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of
financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the portfolio;

(ii) national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists.

For loans and receivable category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset'’s original effective
interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)
(m) Financial assets (continued)
(iii)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
(iv) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the group uses the
criteria refer to (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on the that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from equity and recognised in the separate
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised int he separate consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the separate consolidated
income statement. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
separate consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is
described in note 3b.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(m)

(iv)

(n)

(o)

Financial assets (continued)

Assets classified as available-for-sale
(continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries or associates is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary or associate in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statement
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’'s net assets
including goodwill.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In
the consolidated statement of cash flows, bank
overdrafts are shown within “borrowings” in
current liabilities.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (or laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resource will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprised lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.
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64

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(p)

(q)
(i)

(ii)

Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. a provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
Company’s functional and the group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICES (continued)

(q)
(i)

(iii)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Transactions and balances

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within “finance
income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the income statement
within “other gains and /(losses)"”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other
changes in carrying amount are rcognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(q) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii)  Group companies (continued)

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign operations, and of borrowings and
other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income. \When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statements part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Government grants

Grants from the PRC government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with the attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that compensate the Group
for the costs of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expenses.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2010

2.

EXREHBREMEE

() SN HEBER)
(iii) %2 5] (F)

(r)

b BHURARE AU AM
X FHEXRRE (&
FUTFHEITRERS
HHIEXMRAZENA
BAOE: BLBERT - %K
x B33 5 A B [E i
ORI

() FrE Rt MELNE L ZE
R EHM 2 SR

EHEAKRBE  BMEBIEHKD
FRENNBERERNEMEE

ERZEREHTMNER TAMR
EENELZRIARMEEE
7o BEy mE N E eI ER
B ZERNERARZENZ5HE
ERARKERSHEREN—

B e

RKRESIEREENAERA
FERBEASBIEREEMA
B WK EXRGE -

BB
TEBAREBR A AEEER S
W BRI AN SR B 5 A P A AR R R
B A PEERAR -

BERAR ZBT/#BIg SN E R
BB E K AP 2 BIER AL 7
WATRRFERBARR ©

BWERRR-HEERE ZBT
BN ZEE 2 RE AR -
HEBRNZEEZBRFHANE
B EFTER N RS ERER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R AR Y R

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANEEZT)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)
(s) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
(i)  Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant
income and are expensed in the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"),
the Group is required to contribute an amount to
certain retirement benefit schemes based on the
wages for the year of those employees in the
PRC. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
those employees of the Group. Contributions to
these retirement benefits schemes are charged
to the statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(s)
(ii)

(t)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension obligations (continued)

The employee’s of the Group’s which operates
in the PRC are required to participate in the
state-managed retirement scheme operated by
the local municipal government. Contributions
are made based on a certain percentage of the
payroll costs and are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the state-managed
retirement scheme.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Company has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)
(u) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to
control the group or exercise significant
influence over the group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the group;

the group and the party are subject to
common control;

the party is an associate of the group or
a joint venture in which the group is a
venturer,

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the group or the group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in (i), or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
group or of any entity that is a related party
of the group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.
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2.

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales with the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities as described below. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales revenue is recognised when the
merchandise is delivered and title has been
passed to the customers.

(ii)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts
payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEHEME(E)
POLICES (continued)
(x) Segment reporting (x) SE®RSE

Operating segment, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various line of
business and geographical locations.

(y) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group's financial statements in the period in which

RENTBEMBREMEBE
DEBBEE  DREASIEE
BRTIAEEEEBE LR D ER
FHEERBMERREE T AEH
REEEABRZMBEFR MmHE
T

y) BESIK
DR TARBREARERARA
AR R E B B SR ERE AT
AEEVBHREFERE—EE

the dividends are approved by the Company's & o
shareholders.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 3. BB & t{hih R X8

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Impairment of assets (other than trade and
other receivables)
The Group tests annually whether assets have
suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 2(k). The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present
value, which has been prepared on the basis of
management’'s assumptions and estimates.
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3.

72

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is made based on assessment of
the recoverability of trade receivables and other
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts
requires management judgement and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in
future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and other receivables and doubtful
debt expenses/written back in the period in which
the estimate has been changed.

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation or
amortisation charges for its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
purchase know-how and prescription of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation or
amortisation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Company
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.
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TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of biochemical medicines. Revenue represents
the invoiced value of merchandise sold less allowances for
returns, discounts, value-added tax and other sales related
taxes.

EXE

AEBZ TBXGRBERDHEEE -
WARHERmNBERE YOHER
FRE - TN BEH R EMEERREE
TR H) 78

2010 2009

—E-EF ZEThF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETF T ARETTT

Sales of medicine Y S 200,630 152,766
SEGMENT INFORMATION EER

The Group has only one business segment which is the
manufacture and distribution of biochemical medicines in
the PRC. During the years ended 31 December 2010 and
2009, turnover of the Group is generated entirely from
sales in the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no business and
geographical segments information is presented. This is
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the group’s top management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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SEMBERBRIEESULNPE - At
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OTHER INCOME Hapug A
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Recovery of bad debts previously U [E 2 4 £ 2 BR
written off 163 70
Bank interest income HITHBUA 294 309
Government subsidy (Note) BT ARG (AT 27) 2,320 708
Interest income on loan receivables JE U B SR B A 2,696 -
Yield gain on available-for-sale A B B 75 A 2 B dR e
financial assets 39 -
Others HAh 143 5,794
5,655 6,881

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
received subsidies from various local municipal government
bodies in the PRC, which aimed at the general financing of
the business and technology development of the Group.
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7. OTHER GAINS 7. H At Y 28
2010 2009
—E-EF ZEENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARET T AREEFTT
Fair value (losses)/gains on biological 44 &&E—fE 2 A&
assets — deers (E518),/ &7 16 (38) 107
Gains on disposal of property, HEWE  WEREE
plant and equipment &ZF 271 77
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENE ARk 35 213 -
446 178
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. & R AR
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Interest expenses on borrowings BEZFEER 178 273
74 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. Fr8 & A& R
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
k3 AR®BT T AREEFTT
Operating profit before income tax RS AT 2 R E L &
for the year is arrived at after- wmAHE R (GEA)
charging/(crediting):— TH&E: —
Cost of inventories sold (excluding B HEFEKA(TEIE
additional provision for, and BN R EEZE
write off of obsolete and HEFE
slow-moving inventories) 40,439 37,581
Provision for obsolete and slow- REE MO T BB G
moving inventories 23 2,864 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables [EWE ZEEZF ZHERE 25 2,721 943
Impairment loss on other receivables E A ERERA 2R ERKE 26 3,009 -
Impairment loss on property, M - R MERERE
plant and equipment E518 17 705 -
Provision for tax recoverable AT YR [ F T8 1 3,554 7,000
Auditors’ remuneration:— ZEE I« —
Provision for the year FNEE 254 265
Under-provision in prior years BEFTEREIR 21 69
Amortisation of intangible assets WA EEE
(included in cost of sales) (B ASEERA) 21 7,255 8,099
Impairment loss on intangible assets &2 & & B (B &5 18 21 1,960 1,230
Research and development cost s m 503 48
Amortisation of prepaid land lease ~ FE{ + #b78 £ #E4Y
payments (included in cost of sales)  (FI] A $5& A7) 18 125 125
Depreciation of property, M- FEK
plant and equipment RIETE 17 5,955 6,089
Employee benefits expenses ETEMNER
(excluding directors’ and (TEREEER
supervisors’ remuneration): EEME)
Salaries and allowances e KERL 14 44,665 36,821
Pension scheme contributions RIRESFTEIHR 669 215
Fair value losses/(gains) on biological “4¥&E—E 2
assets — deers NFEEE(8F) 16 38 (101)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEX
plant and equipment REBAT 7 (271) (77)
Eﬁ‘é\ﬁﬁﬁ‘é‘éi{tﬁ%gfﬁgggg 75
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

10. FrEHixH (ER)

76

(a) Income tax represents: (a) FIEHERE:
2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
PRC enterprise income tax H B SEFTIS AR
— Current year —AFE 8,441 5,457
— Over-provision in prior years — EFZIREE (507) (2,503)
Deferred taxation (Note 31) RIERIIE (M17231) (543) (3,032)
7,391 (78)

The PRC enterprise income tax is provided
according to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law,
which became effective from 1 January 2008.
In accordance with the new tax law, an unified
enterprise income tax rate of 25% is applied to
both domestic-invested enterprises and foreign-
invested enterprises.

On 24 July, 2009, the Company was accredited as
a "National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the
Jilin Provincial Science and Technology Bureau (&
MERIERTEE) and is entitled to a reduced PRC
Enterprise Income tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2010 (2009: 15%).

The Group's subsidiary in Hong Kong is subject to
Hong Kong profits tax calculated at 16.5% (2009:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. No Hong Kong profits tax is provided as the
Company has no estimated assessable profit for
the year (2009: Nil).
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(AANRMZR)
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 10. FiBRiXH (E&) (&)
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense/ (b) BEXH (ER)EEIHEF
(credit) and accounting profit at applicable REABEREEROT @
tax rate:
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Profit before income tax KR BT 1554 Al i 7 43,282 21,998
Notional tax calculated at PRC BB EMESHEI15%
enterprise income tax rate of 15% “EZNF 15%)
(2009: 15%) FTEAEIR 6,492 3,300
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARRMANTR G E (537) (30)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~a] 3% 50 & B FL 75 B2 & 2,486 1,407
Deferred tax on temporary differences B7F F E &k =50
in prior year BT IR (543) (1,230)
Tax relief HEER - (2,503)
Over-provision in prior years EFLIREE (507) -
Effect of decreased tax rate METHZZE - (1,022)
Income tax expense/(credit) FTgBiz i, (HEp) 7,391 (78)
*Mﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ‘éi{tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
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11.

12.

13.

78

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2010 is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Group for the year of
RMB35,891,000 (2009: RMB22,076,000) and 560,250,000
shares in issue during the year (2009: 560,250,000
shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the
years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2010 includes a profit of
RMB32,882,000 (2009: RMB22,332,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(Note 33).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
RMB: Nil).
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560,250,0000%) T & -

RBE-F-—EFR-FEAFT=
A=+— BB ELREEEEYE
B - B 2T REERT

RARFERANEEBR

BHE-_Z-ZETF+_A=+—BILFE
A AR RER A B RESFA
R#32,882,000T (=TT hdF: ARE
22,332,0007T) + #&% & M ERA QT 28
MR T ERIB(MEE33) o

’RE

ARRYPEFRERNBE —T—FF
TZA=T-BUEFEZEARE(ZE
THhE |-



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R AR BT R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14.

REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ remuneration
Details of remuneration paid to the Directors of
the Company, which were all below HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to RMB846,000 for the year ended 31
December 2010 and RMB881,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2009) and disclosed pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules and Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:—

ESNERTHRAEMS

(a) E=E=MS
REBERARREE SN 2 B
£ 191K 51,000,000 7T (R E &=
—E-TE+-_A=+—HItF
EHEE 7 AR #846,0005T M &
2T NF+_A=+—8Lt
FEHEER ARMS81,0007T) I
BIEAIZER ETRAREERQA
BOIZE16115HE - AFBHT :

2010 —E-EF
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and other fund 2010
fees benefits contributions Total
He o R —E2-2F
e RHEMAZE BHREUEX e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AR®BTR AR®TR AR¥T:R
Executive Directors: HITEF -
Zhang Hong BN - 46 14 60
Zhang Xiao Guang TR - 100 11 111
Zhao Bao Gang = - 106 11 117
Tian Xin Guo T - 354 12 366
Liang Fu Xiang (Resignedon 2@ (RN_E—%
15 November 2010) F+—A+HA
FH1E) - 174 1" 185
Chen Qi Ming ek B BF - 123 11 134
Wu Guo Wen REX - 129 11 140
Independent Non-Executive 15 IEHTEE -
Directors:
Shen Yu Xiang LEH - 106 - 106
Yan Li Jin Hiee - - - -
Xue Chang Qing BERE - - - -
-~ 1,138 81 1,219
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14. DIRECTORS’' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’' 14. EENERITHAEEBME(E)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EE=WME(E)
2009 —EZhEF
Salaries,

allowances Pension
Directors’ and other fund 2009
fees benefits  contributions Total
E = ZETNF
we  REMFE  RERSER HBENE

RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT

Executive Directors: HITEE -
Zhang Hong BN - 28 8 36
Zhang Xiao Guang SRR - 97 8 105
Zhao Bao Gang HEMN - 93 8 101
Tian Xin Guo HEE - 288 8 296
Liang Fu Xiang RIEH - 136 8 144
Chen Qi Ming (E=ge ] - 145 8 153
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 100 8 108
Independent Non-Executive i 3EH177E % :
Directors:
Shen Yu Xiang LEH - 107 - 101
Yan Li Jin HEe - 8 - 8
Xue Chang Qing BRAB - 8 - 8
- 1,004 56 1,060
There were no arrangements under which HEZZ " TFR=_FTTNLF+=A
a director waived or agreed to waive any =ST-HIEEE SIEAEEENEL
emoluments, and no incentive payment or REMEEAMNS 2 28 - TEERT
compensation for loss of office was paid or AIEE 2 BEHE BT AR S (A -
payable to any director during the years ended 31
December 2010 and 2009.
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)  Senior executives’ remuneration
Details of remuneration paid to the Supervisors of
the Company which were all below HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to RMB846,000 for the year ended 31
December 2010 and RMB881,800 for the year
ended 31 December 2009) are as follows:—

14. ESRERTHRAEME(E)

(b) BHRITHAEMS
REBMAAREEEEI 2B
£ K 71,000,0008 TT(REZE —
T-TFE+-_A=+—HILFE
HERARBES46,0007T R EE
—ETAF+_A=+— Emi
EHENARESS1,8007T) @

B
2010 —E-2F
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other fund 2010
benefits contributions Total
Frd -~ EEY —E-FF
EHEHMAIZ — ERESHK A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥BTR AR%TxR
Supervisors: o
Zhang Jing Zhou =M 52 = 52
Li Bao Hai FES 24 6 30
Wu Wei Men REE 26 6 32
102 12 114
2009 —RENF
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other fund 2009
benefits  contributions Total
e o RRL —EThEF
NEMFZE RS HEK RN
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETTT
Supervisors: 2%
Zhang Jing Zhou s M 92 4 96
Li Bao Hai =25 20 4 24
Wu Wei Men RER 24 4 28
136 12 148

There were no arrangements under which
a Supervisor waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments, and no incentive payment or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable
to any supervisor during the years ended 31
December 2010 and 2009.

BE_Z-ZER_ZFTNF+_A=
T—RLEFE HEFHEFHEXR
EMEEAME 228 - T ERER
EE 7B NSEN M ERRHE -

*Mﬁ?ﬁféﬁﬁ‘éiﬂ:ﬁ%ﬁﬁ Egg% 81
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(AAREZT)
14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' 14. EERSRITHRAEME(E)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(c)  Five highest paid individuals (c) HEESHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals during the year FASE =T MATRIERE
included five Directors (2009: four Directors) F(ZETNF 4REF)2BEHN
whose remuneration is set out in (a) above. For the Ble BN X (a)#F - REZE
year ended 31 December 2009, the remuneration ZEENFF A=+ —HLEF
payable to the one remaining individual, non- E-ENSRT-—2FEZEEZ
director employee was below HK$1,000,000 MK 741,000,000 T(BHE-F
(equivalent to RMB846,000 for the year ended 31 —EE+_A=+—HILFEMR
December 2010 and RMB881,800 for the year LR ARMS46,000 M EHEZT
ended 31 December 2009) are as follows:— TNF+ZA=1+—RHLFER
LM ARM®881,8007T) + FFIF WA
T

2010 2009

—E-FF —ZEThEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETFT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits #r& - 7288 R E b Fl3 - 265

Pension scheme contributions RIRE T2 - 10

- 275

15.

82

During the years ended 31 December 2010 and
2009, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
these highest paid employees as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government, or in the case of the employees in Hong
Kong, a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme ("MPF scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes. The employer’'s contributions vest
fully once they are made. At 31 December 2010 and 2009,
no forfeited contributions were available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

The Group's contribution to retirement benefits schemes
for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to
RMB669,000 (2009: RMB215,000).
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16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 16. FREBEYEE
Bearer biological assets comprise: TRBEVMEERE
The Group and the Company
AEBRARQT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EFNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
Deers — immature, at fair value o N o/NS X ] 6 11
Deers — mature, at fair value BE—KF B AFE 188 221
Ginseng, at cost A2 LA E 1,758 1,414
Vineyard, at cost BE - IGRANE 552 523
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—H2ZKHEE 2,504 2,169
EHERERRE(RRE O
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(UAREZT)
16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 16. AR BEYWEEE)
Reconciliation of carrying amounts of bearer biological TREBEMEEREABEYEE
assets:
The Group and the Company
TEBRAQT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETHhEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Deers e
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEAE 232 148
Loss arising from changes in fair value

less estimated point-of-sale costs AT EBHHRELGEH S| B

attributable to physical changes HETHERNAEE L

(Notes 7 and 9) BB (A7 59) (92) (155)
Gain arising from changes in N EEEFHERE

fair value less estimated point-of-sale IR Z EErHES,

costs attributable to price changes AN EE A 2 Wk (B a7 29)

(Notes 7 and 9) 54 256
Decrease due to sales HEm T - (17)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+t-A=+—BZ2KHEE 194 232
Ginseng A
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREAE 1,414 827
Additions during the year FARE 344 587
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—BHZKEE 1,758 1,414
Vineyard k=
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEAE 523 415
Additions during the year FARE 29 108
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—A=+—RHZKmE 552 523

2,504 2,169

84

The carrying amounts of immature and mature deers
were valued at market values with reference to prices
in the local market of comparable age and breed. The
carrying amounts of ginseng and vineyard were valued at
their original costs. These assets are in their early stage
of cultivation and preparation and active market prices are
not available. In addition, the Directors are of the view that
the original costs would approximate their fair values at
this stage of their development.
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. ¥ -BERRE

Furniture,
Plantand Transportation fixtures and
Buildings machinery equipment equipment Total
HE #BR
BT HER#E LR B @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT NS S AREFTL AREFTL ANREFIL
The Group bS]
Cost; A :
At 1 January 2009 RZZTHhE-HA—H 50,206 45,818 3,836 755 101,615
Transfer from construction BECEEIR
in progress (Note 19) (H19) 5,400 374 - - 5,774
Additions N - 442 541 56 1,039
Disposals e - - (953) - (953)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENF
TZR=+- 55,606 46,634 3424 1811 107,475
Transfer from construction BECSEEIR
in progress (Note 19) (Hit19) - 342 - - 342
Additions N - 1131 - 26 1,157
Disposals e - 40) (535) 64) (639)
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-BF
+ZRA=1+-H 55,606 48,067 2,889 1773 108,335
Accumulated depreciation: f%éﬁ?% :
At 1 January 2009 R_EENF-A—H 9,143 28,9% 2,181 1,374 41,693
Charge for the year (Note 9) EM%WM 1748 3,888 357 96 6,089
Written back on disposals HERD - - (861) - (861)
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
+ZR=+-H 10,891 32,883 1677 1470 46,921
Charge for year (Note 9) EREHMHI) 1,748 3815 295 97 5,955
Written back on disposals HERE - ) (508) (64) (576)
Impairment (Note 9) REMHI) - 705 - - 705
At 31 December 2010 WZZ-F%F
+ZA=t—H 12,639 37,399 1,464 1,603 53,005
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-Z%
+-A=1+—H 42,967 10,668 1425 270 55,330
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENE
+ZA=1—-H 44715 13,751 1,747 341 60,554
EHEEEREECEERBERLT 85
—E-ZFFER
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. #¥ - - BERRE(E)

(continued)
Furniture,
Plantand Transportation fixtures and
Buildings machinery equipment equipment Total
. B8 KER N
B Bl EaRE B h
RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOW
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFTL
The Company Y UNC|
Cost; (K
At 1 January 2009 R-ZZNF-A—H 50,206 45,818 3,836 1,691 101,551
Transfer from construction BREERIR
in progress (Note 19) (Ht19) 5,400 374 - - 5,774
Additions B - 442 541 56 1,039
Disposals HE - - (953) - (953)
At 31 December 2009 RZZTHE
+ZR=1t—H 55,606 46,634 3424 1,747 107,411
Transfer from construction BAOEETR
in progress (Note 19) (Wit19) - 342 - - 342
Additions R - 1,131 - 26 1,157
Disposals HE - (40) (535) - (575)
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—-5F
+-A=1+-H 55,606 48,067 2,889 1,773 108,335
Accumulated depreciation: ZiE:
At 1 January 2009 RZZEENE-A—H 9,143 28,995 2,181 1315 41,634
Charge for the year ERTH 1,748 3,888 357 9% 6,083
Written back on disposal HERE D - - (861) - (861)
At 31 December 2009 RZZETHE
+-ZR=1—-H 10,891 32,883 1,677 1,410 46,861
Charge for the year FRZE 1748 3815 295 %3 5,951
Written back on disposal HERE - 4 (508) - (512)
Impairment hfE - 705 - - 705
At 31 December 2010 WZZ-F%
+ZA=1+—-H 12,639 37,399 1,464 1,503 53,005
Carrying amount; RHE :
RZZ-%F
At 31 December 2010 +-A=+—-H 42,967 10,668 1,425 270 55,330
At 31 December 2009 RZBERNE
+-F=+-H 44715 13,751 1,747 337 60,550
The buildings of the Group and the Company are situated REBRANBEFMRAFE 2R E -
on parcels of land in the PRC in which the Group and the REBRARNTRFHEBBAMR 2R
Company held medium-term land use rights (Note 18). s AR (HTEE18) -
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18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FEfFHEE
The Group and
the Company
AEERARRQT
RMB'000
ARETTT
Cost: ﬁ52$ :
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 and RZEENF—H—R =%
31 December 2010 fﬂi‘i’ A=+—BEZ=
—ZEF+=-A=+—H 3,631
Accumulated amortisation: RET#EE
At 1 January 2009 RZZETZNF—H—H 933
Charge for the year (Note 9) FAZHEHF9) 125
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+_A=+—H 1,058
Charge for the year (Note 9) FRZHEH719) 125
At 31 December 2010 S —ZEF+-A=+—H 1,183
Carrying amount: IREE
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZEF+_A=+—H8 2,348
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+=ZA=+—H 2,473
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HBEEE 2,348 2,473
Portion classified as current assets DEARBEEZHY (125) (125)
Portion classified as non-current assets DR AEIERBEE S 2,223 2,348

The above medium-term land use rights are located in the

PRC.

VA AP 4 3 i A L 70 AR B
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19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. ERBIRE
The Group and the Company
AEERALTF
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
At 1 January w—HA—H 26,399 14,830
Additions BN 3,009 17,343
Transfer to property, plant and equipment =% « R R
(Note 17) (Hi7%17) (342) (5,774)
Disposals e (107) -
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—82 28,959 26,399
20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. AKMIBARKNKRE
The Company
RAFE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Unlisted investment, at cost JEETIRE » IR ANE 10,500 5,500
Amount due from a subsidiary IS NEIVSE S - 3,365
10,500 8,865
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST B BB A Bl EIE 9,990 5,000
88 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010

were as follows:—

Name of companies

AR

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong
Pharmacy Trading Company
Limited

HNE B REELLHE
BREFAR

Jilin Province Medicinal Plants
Trading Company Limited

EMER T EREYLE
BRAT]

HEMERERHMESRAT

Country of incorporation
and operation and

legal entity status
ML R
RENEARR
EEBRM

The PRC,
limited liability company

hE - AREEAT

The PRC,
limited liability company

FE - BREEAT

The PRC,
limited liability company

R - BREIAT

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-
free and in substance represents the Company’s
investment in the subsidiary in the form of quasi-equity
loan. The directors consider that the carrying amount of
the balance approximated its fair value.

The amounts due to subsidiaries classified as current
liabilities in the Company’s balance sheet are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

On 19 October 2010, the Group disposed its wholly
owned subsidiary of Changlong Bio-Pharmacy (Hong Kong)
Company Limited, to Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang, an executive
director of the Group, at a consideration of HK$2. Details
of the disposal are set out in note 35.

On 22 December 2010, the Company established a
subsidiary, A REEMEERAQE], in the PRC
with 100% equity interest. The investment cost of
RMB15,000,000 was not yet paid up by the Company as

at the year end.

20.

RE B AR REGE)
RZF—FE+=A=+—0 WBA
AREMT : —

Percentage of

ordinary shares

held directly  Principal activity
BEEE
ZERH
Aok FEEK
100%  Trading of
biochemical
medicine
EEH v Em
100%  Dormant
RS
100% Dormant
TES)

fEY — MK B AR Z KA BEER
EEREEBRRARARINERDER 2T
ARMBRARZKRE - BEERR - %M
o REERE QR FERS

ENMBRARREARBARARREER
BRZRBEE  /EER 28 NZ

TR -

RZZF-FFE+ATIAB  AEELE
2EMBARREELCERZ(FE)AR
RAEATFARERTESRELLE - (K
BR22BT - HEFIFNH E36ME -

R-ZE—ZEF+_A=-+=-H &~AQAH
RAPBERY —FHBAR  SHEREE
EHEBRAG c ARREAZAFN
100% IR Az - RER - REKEAAR
#£15,000,0007T i R B AR B L AT o

EHEMERRECAREATRLD g9

—=
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. EBIEEE
The Group and the Company TEBRAEQF
Purchased
Purchased in-process
know-how research and
and development
prescription assets Total
BARME CBETH
-yl MBEE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost: RN
At 1 January 2009 RZZETZNF—H—H 60,335 9,800 70,135
Additions R 550 1,300 1,850
RZZEZNF+=A
At 31 December 2009 = t+t—HEZZE—ZF
and 31 December 2010 +=-—HA=+—H 60,885 11,100 71,985

Accumulated amortisation and ZRiti#i s KR EEIE :
impairment loss:

At 1 January 2009 RZEZENF—HA—H 29,306 - 29,306
Amortisation charge (Note 9) BT (1 E9) 8,099 - 8,099
Impairment charge (Note 9) WA (Hi9) 1,230 - 1,230
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+ZA

=+—H 38,635 - 38,635
Amortisation charge (Note 9) Big h(#a29) 7,255 - 7,255
Impairment charge (Note 9) A T (H79) 1,960 - 1,960
At 31 December 2010 R-ZZE—ZF+=A

=+—H 47,850 - 47,850
Carrying amount: BRIEME :
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+=H

=T—H 13,035 11,100 24,135
At 31 December 2009 RZZZNEFE+A

=+—H 22,250 11,100 33,350
Purchased know-how and prescription were acquired BB AR R %5 RS =75 & 1FH
through research and development cooperation with BERUAEHRESBA -

independent third parties and were all acquired in cash.
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21.

22,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group and the Company (continued)

During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying
amount of the purchased know-how and prescription
based on the future economic benefits generated from
these assets. An impairment loss of RMB1,960,000 was
recognised for the current year (2009: RMB1,230,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group had
acquired purchased in-process research and development
assets of RMB1,300,000 from independent third parties
and their payments were settled against prepayments.
Purchased in-process research and development
assets represent costs incurred by third parties for the
development of new products, including cost of clinical
experiments and tests conducted. Due to the inherent
uncertainties associated with these purchased in-process
research and development projects, the associated
expenditure incurred is particularly at risk of impairment if
the successful eventual commercialisation of the projects
becomes doubtful. The Directors have reviewed the
carrying amount of these purchased in-process research
and development assets and consider that there are no
indications of impairment as at 31 December 2010 and
2009.

DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND USE
RIGHTS

In the year 2008, the Company entered into a land
purchase agreement with an independent third party
to purchase a parcel of land which is situated at the
Economic Development Zone in Huinan, Jilin Province,
the PRC, at a consideration of RMB11,372,000. During
the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company paid
a deposit of RMB10,000,000 to the third party. The
remaining balance of RMB1,372,000 was expected to be
settled upon the completion of the registration process to
transfer the title of the land to the Company. The Directors
have reviewed the carrying amount of the deposit and
consider that these is no indication of impairment as at 31
December 2010 and 2009.

As disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements, the
above unpaid balance is included as a capital commitment
of the Group and the Company.

21.

22,

| EEE)

AEBERARDTE(E)

EW CEERBEREEERREA K
ER R AR T FTRE AT R 825 2 BRTEE -

Kiﬁﬁ- RIEEE A AR 1,960,000

T(ZETNF - ARM1,230,0007T) ©

HE_TTNF+_A=1+—HLFE"
$%lmﬁ2%:E%A2éF%AE
#%1,300,0007T © B A& B FUATERS 3R
Bt o E%ﬁﬁ¢ﬁ%§§%”fﬁ%
BHERELECZER BEDETZ
ERIAFEKR - AR EHEERBETT
MEBBE2RETHERZ  WHIER
BRENEELERYE  EENERE
AAEGERERR -EECHRIDE
BITHRAREEZREE  YRAERZ
E-ZEER-ZTTNF+_A=+—8H
WEARIRETR

WiELttEREZRE

RZBZENE AR
GEIVASS:

RIE—FBIE=
LA S B AL A AR B & AR
EBELEERR ML REAR
AR®11,372,0007T - HEZZZTNF
+ZA=+—HLFE AREEME
& AR #10,000,0007T T2 B E=F °
H&E AR 1,372,000 B IR 5
MAREERE TP A #E 2 M RIRE
T - EFCEHNZESETE  URER
—E-ZEER-FTNFTZA=1—
B R EDNR -

BTSRRI FE 344X BR - LA E RIS FROR
SARAEE AR ZBEARALE o
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23. INVENTORIES 23. ®E
The Group and the Company
AEERAKDTE
2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTTT
Raw materials FEM R 8,208 9,001
Work in progress bkl 13,538 6,709
Finished goods UK TR 10,770 11,368
32,516 27,078
Less: Provision for obsolete and W BRI ERE
slow-moving inventories (9,213) (6,349)
23,303 20,729
During the year, provision on obsolete and slow-moving FA - 2EH ARK2,864,000,2 FEE &
inventories amounted to RMB2,864,000 was made (2009: HIHFERE(CZTNFE - E) -
Nil).

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 24, Af#tHEMKEE

The Group and the Company

AEEREAQT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETHhF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Unlisted securities at cost FEHFESE > BRAE

At 1 January A—HB—H = -
Additions i 20,000 -
Settlements k= (18,000) -
At 31 December R+=-—B=+—H 2,000 -
There were no impairment provisions on available-for-sale RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—8 "J#H
financial assets as at 31 December 2010. B BEERERERE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date RBEEH  FEYNSEAEERRA
is the carrying value of the unlisted securities. JELMESMREE -
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25, EWESER
The Group The Company
TEH ¥ N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E2-2F —TTHF ZEB-ZTF —_TTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT AR¥TRT AR®ETT

Trade receivables EWE SIER 101,507 94,959 113,198 106,695

Less: Provision for impairment  J& : Ja{E & & (10,184) (13,717) (7,239) (11,736)

Trade receivables — net FEUWE 5 REK

—FE 91,323 81,242 105,959 94,959

0] The Group's policy is to allow an average credit (i AEERKERGETESEFTY
period of 180 days to its trade customers. 180H Z ARERHA -

(ii) The movements in the provision for impairment (ii) FRRERERENZSH(RER
for doubtful debts during the year, including both EREBEBEEEWT
specific and collective loss components, are as
follows:

The Group The Company

AEE ¥ NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E2-2F —TTNF —B-BF —_TThF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT AR%¥TR ARETT
At 1 January n—H—H 13,717 12,774 11,736 11,035
Additional provision OB AE (AT 2E9)

(Note 9) 2,721 943 1,757 701
Written off 1 85 (6,254) - (6,254) -
At 31 December wt+—_A=+—H 10,184 13,717 7,239 11,736
Provision for doubtful debts had been made for REBEDHESEY 2 5T
the estimated irrecoverable amounts arising from AIRESEEDL - ESE2ZH
the sale of goods. The provision was determined FHEREHETEBEHSSE -
by the directors with reference to past default
experience.

ENERB R RER T
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. REWEZERMGE)
(i)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on (iii) BEEZAHRNRERE SR
the invoice date and net of provision for impairment FORERE - EWEZERZOER
of trade receivables, is as follows: ks N
The Group The Company
AEE KAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —_TTNGF —B-BF —_TThHF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARBTT ARETRT ARETT
Current BN EH 31,717 30,947 33,771 33,161
31-90 days 31-90H 18,871 13,081 22,680 15,847
91-180 days 91-180H 13,751 15,025 19,431 21,645
More than 180 days H#iB180H 26,984 22,189 30,077 24,306
91,323 81,242 105,959 94,959
(ivi  The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are (iv) 3 4 1E 5l Sk 5= B8 AR VE R (B B9 FE U
neither individually nor collectively considered to be B RFREITIT ¢
impaired is as follows:
The Group The Company
AEE KATH
2010 2009 2010 2009

—B-%5 —TTAF —B-BF —DTAF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFE ARHTT ARBTE ARHBTT

Neither past due nor I #8360 HA SiORLE

impaired 64,339 59,053 75,881 70,653
Less than 1 month wmE LR —ER

past due 5,736 4,049 11,333 8,430
1to 3 months pastdue BEI—ZE=1{EH 7,025 4,959 6,722 5,000
Over 3 months past due  #EiA:@B =& A 6,218 4,390 6,213 4,622

83,318 72,451 100,149 88,705

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor BEm R ENERE RN
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for BRZ WA R KRG HE TP
whom there was no recent history of default. B -
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25.

26.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(vi)

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade receivables of the Company
was a balance of RMB25,939,000 (2009:
RMB25,774,000) due from a subsidiary as at 31
December 2010.

The Directors consider the carrying amount of
trade receivables approximates their fair value.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

25, EWEZERMRE)

(vi)

180 BB Rk (8 O B U 5 AR R B
SRBURPEH ZEEFPY
AEBMEETRRL - RIEB
e EEERR RTHEH
BARE REAREELARLE
EREH  AAESKDERETE
g E o AL B 3 5 5% 5 AE AR
FAEM® -

RAREWE SEAABIERZ
E-TE+ - A=+—BEKH
B R a2 &k AR 25,939,0007T
(—ZBENE : AR5 774,000

JL) °

EERR BREZFERRZEE
BEAEARFEMES -

26. HMEWRIE - FT&RENSKE

PREPAYMENTS
The Group The Company
AEE ¥ /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—ET—TF —TTHF ZE-ZTF —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE ARETT ARETRT ARETT
Advances to staff mETER 3,285 14,681 3,285 14,681
Bills receivables TEWEE 11,774 6,421 11,362 6,329
Other receivables H fib fE Y 5k08 2,257 2,146 2,257 2,146
Deposits and prepayments e MIENFRIE 9,102 3,415 9,102 3,404
26,418 26,663 26,006 26,560
Less: non-current other W FEM BN E A HE
receivables, deposits and Ukl ~ 5T
prepayments & RIBAR
18 (5,100) - (5,100) -
21,318 26,663 20,906 26,560

=
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26.

96

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, certain of the Group's
and the Company’'s advances to staff and other
receivables were determined to be impaired. The impaired
receivables related to staff and debtors that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that only
a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, the following provisions for doubtful debts
have been made.

26. HMEWRIE - TE&RESRE
(#8)
RZE—ZEFRZZFETNF+=A
=+—8 AEBERAAFME TN
B TRIBEREMERFIEREEAD
A o %5 B R E R EWEIE A EE R
MHRHNETINERAGH  E1HE
FERAERNs U GKIBETERTRE - B
B SR ARVEH DA T B -

The Group and The Group and the
the Company Company
Advanced to staff Other receivables
AEBREQT AEBRAQT
@8 T8 HAth R FRIE
2010 2009 2010 2009

=F-¥F —TINF —B-BF —TINF
RMB’000 RMB'000 = RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETT ARMTE ARMTR

Gross amounts 1B =E 8,179 17,008 3,108 2,575
Less: Provision for impairment  J& : A {E B & (4,894) (2,327) (851) (429)
Net amounts FRE 3,285 14,681 2,257 2,146

The Group and the Company do not hold any collateral
over the above balances. The movement in the provisions
for impairment of advances to staff and other receivables
during the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:

AEBRARRRLES U E S RITHE
Mo o FAMRE THAFRLHEMEK
RERERENES (EESELERE
BE2)WT

The Group and the Company

REERADQT
2010 2009
—E-EF ZEThF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETTT

At 1 January n—A—H 2,756 2,756
Additional provision (Note 9) B nEE A 29) 3,009 -
Written off 1 58 (20) -
At 31 December Rt+ZA=+—H 5,745 2,756

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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27.

28.

LOANS RECEIVABLES

The Group and the Company

(i) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB10,000,000 (2009:
RMB13,000,000) due from an independent third
party is unsecured, bears interest of 10% per
annum (2009: 10% per annum) and, following its
renewal, shall be repaid within the next twelve
months.

(ii) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB5,150,000 (2009:
RMB5,150,000 ) due from an independent third
party is unsecured, bears interest of 10% per
annum (2009: 10%) and, following its renewal,
shall be repaid within the next twelve months.

The above loans receivables were neither past due nor
impaired as at 31 December 2010 and 2009. The Directors
consider the carrying amount of these loans approximates
their fair value.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the
Group and the Company and short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less. The
directors consider the carrying amount of these assets
approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group's cash and
bank balances denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB97,559,000 (2009: RMB43,453,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

27.

28.

EWER

AEERAAT

(i) FEUBTIE=HNERBEAR
#10,000,0007C (ZZEZTAF : A
R #13,000,0007T) A&EEA - 1%
FRERIOEFE(ZTETNF  F
FRI0E) REHEENAERTZ
BARNEE -

(ii) BUWBIFE = TNEZREBAR
5,150,000 ( —EZLE : AR
#5,150,0007T ) A ZE K I - IR FF|
ZRI0EFTE(ZZEZENF - 10E)
MERBAENKRR+ZEAKE
‘ﬁ °

RIE-ZFR_ZEZNF+ A
=t—A  bdERERL &R
B -BERR WEERZEEERR
RNFEEE -

HEeERBRSEEY
Be RRTEFOEAEEREATR
RS RENBAA=MARNT2E
MBATR - EERE  WBEELE
S A TEEE -

N-EB—FTE+-_F=+—0 K&£H
NARBFEZRESRBITEHRAEA
R#97,659,0007T( —EZ H4F : AR
43,453,0007T) - AR T EERLIRA
Hih &8 - R - REP B KRE Z SMNE
FIEHT  HESERMESTERTE
REERESBERBETINEEL
BITHARBHRASHME

ENERB R RER T

—=
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-
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29. TRADE PAYABLES 29. ENESER
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the UTAEREZEAHMNENE SRR
invoice date, is as follows: BRER DT -
The Group and the Company
TEERAQT
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETHEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Current BlEA 2,031 783
31-90 days 31-90H 723 720
Over 90 days im0 H 4,125 5,205
6,879 6,708
The average credit period from the Group's and the REEBRARRBSBEREAZFEHEER
Company’s trade creditors is 90 to 180 days. H/A90H £180H -
Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding ERHESRRTEREREERELHE -
for trade purchases. The directors consider the carrying EEREBENEZRR2ERERER
amount of trade payables approximates their fair value. FERE -
30. BORROWINGS 30. fBE&
Loans were obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau EE B ERHERHEAR R R
for the purpose of research and development activities of EE A  ZEERBEERR - EF
the Company. The loans are unsecured and bear interest ARBITEMBH —FHHEEMNEN0IE
at one year term saving interest rate promulgated by The RFFEETE - ZZBERAETIFR
People’s Bank of China plus 0.3% per annum. The loans RIZEZ—F L ARDBERE
are repayable by instalments until July 2022 as follows:
The Group and the Company
TEBRAQT
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETHhEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Within one year —FR 636 -
After one year but within two years R—FREMEAN 636 636
After two years but within five years RREERERFA 1,906 1,906
After five years RAEFE 3,512 4,448
6,690 6,990
98 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EEFIE
The movements during the year in the deferred tax FRELEHBEBENEBNT ¢

liabilities are as follows:

The Group and the Company

FEERAAT
2010 2009
—F-—FF —TTNHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETIT

At 1 January m—H—8 1,499 4,531
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10(a)) RIBRENIE (A2 10(a) (543) (3,032)
At 31 December ARt+—A=+—8 956 1,499
The deferred tax liabilities recognised at the balance sheet REEARERZELERIEAEIERE M
date represented deferred tax arising from accelerated RITEE R ZIRIETIIE -
depreciation allowances.
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. BAX
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
IR k-] PhE G|
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT
Domestic shares of RMB0.10 each  HREEARKE
0.10LHINE I% 387,750,000 38,775 387,750,000 38,775
H shares of RMB0.10 each FREEARE
0.107T HYHAL 172,500,000 17,250 172,500,000 17,250
560,250,000 56,025 560,250,000 56,025
EMEEEREECEEROERAT 99
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33. RESERVES 33. fRE
The Group &
Exchange Reserve EZFE

The Group's exchange reserve comprises all foreign REBER FEREIIEER 2P BR
exchange differences arising from the translation of the RAMBEECMEINEZER - ZFEB
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve EREM E2(q)E Y 2 AN EE T EER R

is dealt with in accordance with the Group’s accounting I8 o

100

policy set out in Note 2(q).

The Company biN/NE|
Statutory
Share surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
EE
12 E BEpEE REHEA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%TR AR%®TR AR®TR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Kiita) (K17#b)
At 1 January 2009 RZZETNGF
—H—H 51,098 27,184 112,821 191,103
Profit for the year ARF [E s A - - 22,332 22,332
Appropriation to statutory BREEE
surplus reserve BRI - 3,181 (3,181) -
At 31 December 2009 RZZTTNEF
+=-A=+ 51,098 30,365 131,972 213,435
Profit for the year NE A - - 32,882 32,882
Appropriation to statutory BREETE
surplus reserve BRI - 2,877 (2,877) -
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZF
+=-A=+— 51,098 33,242 161,977 246,317

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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33.

34.

RESERVES (continued)
The Company (continued)

(a)

(b)

Share premium

The Company’s share premium account represents
the premium arising from shares issued at a price
in excess of their par value per share.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the Company's articles of association, the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries shall appropriate
10 percent of their annual statutory net profit (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory
surplus reserve account. When the balance of
such reserve reaches 50 percent of these entities’
share capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to
offset prior years' losses or to issue bonus shares.
However, such statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25 percent of share
capital after such issuance.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company
had capital commitments contracted for but not provided
for as follows:—

& (&)
A0 7 ()

(a)

(b)

IR 1758
ARBRMDGEERABBERE
BZBRBETZRNDELZEE -

EEBERREE

BREFBERFERANRE QA
ER AR REFEKBAF
MBRFFEEMAEEER - BAED
10% B F EETFANEET B
FEFPD - ZZABBEENLER
EZENAIRAEAZ250% - ANAF]
A EITEERSE—PRERIE -
EERGBFRERIERBETIFE
B BB B ITAI A% - AT+ ALAR
BITRETBHREBEZOER
RIRZARH)25% °

BAERE
REER  AEBERADADTHER
TERE R B ARRIEINT - —

The Group and the Company

AEBRAEAQT
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETHhEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Acquisition of intangible assets WS & = 2,940 2,940
Acquisition of property, plant and BEAYE - BB M
equipment 1,055 181
Acquisition of land use rights (Note 22) Wb + Mo 5 P (A 7322) 1,372 1,372
Additional capital contribution of subsidiary 1Z Nk B A 7 2 ;3 E K 15,000 -
20,367 4,493
EHEEEREECEERBERLT 101
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEALRS
Related party transactions concerned with numbers FAHERTZEBEKRECEBEEA
of key management during the year comprised only TRGEBERARNTESINME H
remuneration paid to the Executive Directors, and is set Bl <& A B IS SRR T 514

out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group has disposed of its entired FRN - AEERHERGEZREE(LE
interest in Changlong Bio-Pharmacy (Hong Kong) Company X (BB)BERRAAMNETERTAE
Limited, to Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang, an executive director WITEFREREE RER2ET &
of the Group, at a consideration of HK$2, and the Group RIEXR Y AEBEREEHEMEBAR M
recorded a gain on disposal of subsidiary of RMB213,000 1SS AR EE213,0007C © e 5%
in this transaction. Subsequent to completion, Changlong REENMEZ(ES)BER QA HRE
Bio-Pharmacy (Hong Kong) Company Limited is wholly and HAEE2EERHEE -

beneficially owned by Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang.

Disposal of a subsidiary HEWB QT
Net liabilities of Changlong Bio-Pharmacy (Hong Kong) REEHH  RELELCEEEBEB)BRA
Company Limited at the date of disposal were as follows: RINBEEFEBENT
RMB’000
ARETTT
Other receivables Hoh fE SR IE 10
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 36
Exchange reserve b 5 A (259)
(213)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEWB AT RE 213
Total consideration BRAE -
Satisfied by: EENPEA
Cash REe -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of subsidiary HEWE QAR S5 FE5E
Cash consideration BeRE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHENHEEMRESEYD (36)
(36)

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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36.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
judgements to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts
divided by adjusted capital. Total debts represent total
borrowings. Adjusted capital includes all components of
shareholders’ equity less unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group
may issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing at 31 December 2010 and 2009 was 2.8%
and 3.5% respectively, calculated as follows:

36.

EXmpER

ErERE
AEBEREAZIEZERRREAE
5| °T 45 A AR RO BE D 1 T 38 38 R el e oK
FHREEZERRREEENARERSS
BERANRE  BERRREEDR -

AEBBEGENERHEARBHRRS
REE  UEAREHERSEEKTE
R4F e E AR K B0 4 B2 M AR R 1B R
THRERREEAEBLMRREMH
EEEE  TERERKERRENECHE
RIREE A H B -

AERNED - ARENRBELEER
BEEEEAREEE  DEKEBER
MABEEA o (875G R -
BB E A HE G I 4 0E B ALK
I -

REFIABEERELE  AKEA
BEBITHA - MBRRREER - (EHH
MEBRERHEEENRIAE -

RIBE-—TER-_TTNEEERRE
bR R 52.8%K3.65% @ FEWT ¢

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREEFTT
Total debts [EGr
Non-current liabilities: IEREBEIE -

- Borrowings — &5 6,690 6,990
Shareholders’ equity fR R A= 235,589 199,957
Less: Exchange reserve o BN S - (259)
Adjusted capital ERBER 235,589 199,698
Gearing ratio BEREHLER 2.8% 3.5%
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37.

104

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
currency risk, price risk and fair values risk. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
either for hedging or for trading purposes. These risks are
managed by the Group’s financial management policies
and practices as described below to minimise potential
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash
and bank balances, trade and other receivables
and loans receivables. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to its trade, other and loans
receivables. The Group allows an average credit
period of 180 days to its trade customers. The
amounts presented in the balance sheets are net
of allowance for doubtful receivables. An allowance
for impairment is made where there is an identified
loss event which, based on previous experience, is
evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the
cash flows.

The Group does not have any significant credit
risk exposure to any single trade counterparty
or any Group of trade counterparties having
similar characteristics. It has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade and other
receivables, loans receivables and cash and bank
balances included in the consolidated balance
sheet represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to the Group's financial
assets.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’'s board of directors when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. HM¥kRKBEREGE)

(continued)

Financial risk management (continued) B LB B B ()

(b) Liquidity risk (b) FEBEZER
The following table details the remaining TRETAEE A BN E
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date BRSBRTEOINEAFES iR
of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based BEIHARTRRESRE(BIERE
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including WEFE - R EZHFE - 8
interest payments computed using contractual HREZERANFEAENTE) A
rates, or if floating, based on rates current at the N & B K 7K 2 B A] ge 2B S R
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group =R HEFE-

and the Company can be required to pay.

The Group AEE
Total More than More than
contractual Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years

ANRAE -FRE -FKE WEKE
REE  RERHE HEX [ Fik2,) Fik2 ]
RVBO0O  RVBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBO0O
ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR

2010 —B-B%

Trade payables EIEAEN 6,879 6,879 6,879 - - =
Other payables EfRME 64,123 64,123 64,123 - - =
Income tax payable e 914 914 914 - - -
Other tax payables HipfERfiE 8,166 8,166 8,166 - - -
Dividend payable ERRE 330 330 330 - - -
Borrowings EE 6,690 8,104 880 857 2432 3935
87,102 88,516 81,292 857 2432 3935

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years byears byears

SRR REE £z AFRE
REE  BenaE FEX AER RER nEk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  AREFRT  ARBTR  AREFT ARt AREfR

2009 Z2ENE

Trade payables EREREN 6,708 6,708 6,708 - - -
Other payables EfRMsE 56,069 56,069 56,069 - - -
Other tax payables EiERRE 8,200 8,200 8,200 - - -
Dividend payable RS 345 345 345 - - -
Borrowings g 6,990 8781 256 891 2,534 5,100

78312 80,103 7,578 891 2,534 5,100
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANEEZT)
37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. B¥EREMESEGE)
(continued)
Financial risk management (continued) B35 R B B 2 (4R
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HEEZERE)
The Company S
Total More than More than
contractual Within Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1year or less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years
FIE Rt ok -F42 MERE
BEE  RER4E REX MER BER BEH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥TRL  ARMTR ARMTn  ARETR  ARETn  AR%Tn
210 -%-EF
Trade payables EZ5ER 6,879 6,879 6,879 = E =
Other payables EfEMFE 63,721 63,721 63,721 - - -
Amounts due to subsidlaries A EIEINGE 9,990 9,990 9,990 - - -
Income tax payable ERFER 914 914 914 - - =
Other tax payables EtEfHE 7487 7481 7,481 - - -
Dividend payable ERRE 330 330 330 - - -
Borrowings ’E 6,690 8,104 880 857 2432 3935
96,011 97425 90,201 857 2432 3935
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years b years byears
HE R e —F§E MEGRE
REE  ReneE BER MER TER iy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREFT  ARETR  AREFT  ARETR  ARER
2009 ZEENF
Trade payables ERE5ER 6,708 6,708 6,708 - - -
Other payables EiERFE 55,736 56,736 55,736 - - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERNBARGE 5,000 5,000 5,000 - - -
Other tax payables EfeEfiE 7,707 7,707 7707 - - -
Dividend payable ERRE 345 345 345 - - -
Borrowings £E 6,990 8781 256 891 2534 5,100
82,486 84,277 75,752 891 2,534 5,100
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37

(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from its borrowings from Huinan County Finance
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management is
set out below:

$oh %65 R B T 2R ()

(c) FIRER
AEENNERR T ERBEERD
BUMBRNEE - TN EIE
HHERSAEETHRESRE
MERR XEBBEENLE
B =R T

The Group and the Company

AEERAEQT
2009 2008
S TN

Effective Effective

interest interest

rate rate

BRI BFRA| 2
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT

Variable rate borrowings ZE{EE

Borrowings B 3.66% 6,690 3.66% 6,990

The interest rate and terms of repayment of
the Group's and the Company's borrowings are
disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2010, it was estimated that a
general increase or decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease or increase the Group's profit after
taxation and retained profits by RMB57,000 (2009:
RMB59,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
the borrowings in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date.

REBMEARRNEEF R RERHR
B 5 R R MY SIS0 25 ©

R-EBE-—FE+-A=+—0 RRH
fh B ECT - WEEEFE EFH 100
MEZ Gt ERAERBEEF R
1R BB i FR A st in A R #57,0007T (=
TTNF + AR¥B9,0007T) ©

PR EE AN BRI EE RN EEE
EF2E BEHARZEMEERX
BREET - LA R FE100EE5E
BEHEET —FEAH A L
AL LR A BB TS -

Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéikﬁ%ﬁ@
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZT)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. H¥RRBREE(E)
(continued)
(d)  Currency risk (d) EB¥ER

The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most REBETERFELEER - K

of the transactions settled in Renminbi and did not HORFIUAARBEE - WBLE

have significant exposure to risk resulting from ENEEREHMEELEMNEANR

changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Bz e

(e)  Price risk (e) EREMR
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk AEERETEEMREERLR
or commodity price risk. % K B g R o

(f)  Fair value estimation H AFEMLE

The table below analyses financial instruments TREBGEESTIZAFET

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The BEe@mIA TRSERNEED

different levels have been defined as follows: ™

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active . HREEXEELER
markets for identical assets or liabilities (level mSMIRECRAR) (F1
1). ) o

. Inputs other than quoted prices included . BT E1RFABESNRE
within level 1 that are observable for the Hh ZEBEEMBEMNATE
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as RMEMEE  TAEE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from (B 40 (B #2) ko fa) 2 (BIR
prices) (level 2). BER) (F24k) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not . BEMBEWIFKIEAH
based on observable market data (that is, 5 R AR ABIRED
unobservable inputs) (level 3). TR EBRREIR) (FB3R) ©

The following table presents the group’s assets TEREIRZZE—ZFF+=A

that are measured at fair value at 31 December =T -—HEREATEFENLIEER

2010. B o

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1R H28% 38K st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Assets BE

Available-for-sale financial ~ AJf{ &
assets IS EE - 2,000 2,000
Total assets EERE - 2,000 2,000
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B RS ¥R AR Y R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(f)

Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial assets traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the group is the current bid price. These
financial assets are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial assets that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
financial assets is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial assets include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° The fair value of interest rate swaps is
calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves.

o The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date,
with the resulting value discounted back to
present value.

o Other technigues, such as discounted cash
flow analysis, are used to determine fair
value for the remaining financial assets.

37. BIEREE(E)

(f)
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(UAREZT)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. HM¥kRKBEREGE)

(continued)
(f)  Fair value estimation (continued) A AFEGE)
The following table presents the changes in level TREIREBZ-ZE—ZF+=
3 financial assets for the year ended 31 December A=1T—BULFESEINUFEEE
2010. #h
Unlisted
securities Total
FELHESH st
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTTT
Opening balance FYHEH - -
Additions i 20,000 20,000
Settlements & (18,039) (18,039)
Gains recognised in profit or loss RiER RS 39 39
Closing balance FREH 2,000 2,000
Total gains or losses for the year FR WG EBEEE - &
including in profit or loss for AMEMRFTENEERN
assets held at the end of the B
reporting period 39 39

38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 38 HBEERVBAEBRERNES

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY ML=
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and REER-_ZE-ZEFR-_ZTTNF+=
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2010 and A=+—BmMERNMGEEERMG A
2009 may be categorised as follows: BEMIREERR T AT T A48
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEThF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETIT

Financial assets B EE
Available-for-sale financial assets A EYBEE 2,000 -
Loans and receivables (including cash ERkERGE(RIERE R
and bank balances) RITEER) 231,093 169,645
Financial liabilities MBaE
Financial liabilities measured at B %5 B B TR B s A AT
amortised cost 87,102 78,312

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 39. E#tBB®mxk

STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised BEEgR _E——F=A=1THEHHN
for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2011. TSV BERE -

'I 'I O Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2010



Five Year Financial Summary

EFEBERE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZT)

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of ~AE@MFEFEAC FIBLEEZMBREZ2BERE

the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the MK EE 2 %45 - EENBEREHIWT -
published audited financial statements is set out below.
Operating Results ReEEE

Year ended 31 December

HZ+t-A=1+—-HALEE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-ZF —TTNGF ZTT\§ ZTTLF ZTTF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTR AR%®TT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Turnover X 200,630 152,766 127,124 97,284 69,522
Cost of sales HEKR (42,658) (39,352) (38,819) (29,658 (27,821)
Gross profit EF 157,972 113,414 88,305 67,626 41,701
Other income and net gains E A Rz sk
or losses EEFE 6,101 7,059 428 2,258 1,676
Distribution and selling costs DEREERY (94,306) (77,684) (47,711) (38,426 (28,238)
Administrative expenses THFEX (26,307) (20,518) (15,524) (11,922 (9,197)
Other operating expenses Hi@ LS - - - - 611)
Profit from operations R 43,460 22,271 25,498 19,536 5,331
Finance costs BMEKK (178) (273) (248) (107 (323
Profit before income tax Tt AT A 43,282 21,998 25,250 19,429 5,008
Income tax expense/(credit) RS/ (Ke) (7,391) 78 (10,261) (7,051) (1,971)
Profit for the year attributable to ~ FRADAIEE A
owners of the Company E(E & F 35,891 22,076 14,989 12,378 3,037
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
W+=RA=+-8
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-ZF CZTTNF ZTE\F ZTTLF ZITTRE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRL
Bearer biological assets TR EMEE 2,504 2,169 1,390 1175 656
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 55,330 60,554 59,922 46,777 49,657
Prepared lease payments iENEiEEA 2,223 2,348 2,496 4,285 4,295
Construction in progress FETR 28,959 26,399 14,830 7,880 5,124
Intangible assets EBVEE 24,135 33,350 40,829 27,128 32,650
Deposit for acquisition of s + i AR S
land use rights 10,000 10,000 10,000 - -
Non-current other receivables, FERBE A EWEIE
deposits and prepayments HEN SN ] 5,100 - - - -
Current assets MEBEE 251,421 200,973 188,578 181,387 156,547
Current liabilities mBEE (81,048) (71,322) (72,659) (41,382) (42,649)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (7,010) (8,489) (11,521) (8,371) -
Net assets BEFE 291,614 255,982 233,865 218,879 206,280
Share capital fi% 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025
Reserves G 235,589 199,957 177,840 162,854 150,255
Total equity Emen 291,614 255,982 233,865 218,879 206,280
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRRBERGES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the annual general meeting
of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited ("the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2010
(the "AGM") will be held at 31 Beishan Street, Chaoyang Town,
Huinan County, Tonghua, Jilin Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") on Tuesday, 28 June 2011 at 10:00 a.m. for
the following purposes:

As ordinary resolution:

112

to receive and consider the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and the reports of the
Directors of the Company and the independent auditor’s
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2010;

to consider and approve the report of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2010;

to consider and approve the appropriation to statutory
surplus reserve for the year ended 31 December 2010;

to consider the reappointment of Reanda Lau & Au Yeung
(HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2011 and authorize the Directors to
fix their remuneration;

to consider and approve the remuneration proposals for
Directors and supervisors of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2011;

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2010
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRRBERGES

6. to consider and if the right fit, pass with or without 6.
modifications, the following resolution as a special
resolution:

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraphs (c), (d) and (e) below, the
exercise by the Board of Directors of the Company
(the "Board”) during the Relevant Period (as
defined in paragraph (f) below) of all the powers of
the Company separately or concurrently to allot,
issue and deal with domestic shares of nominal
value of RMBO0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company (the “Domestic Shares”) and/or
overseas-listed foreign shares of nominal value of
RMBO0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
(the “H Shares”) be and is hereby approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise
the Board to make an offer or agreement or grant
an option during the Relevant Period which would
or might require Domestic Shares and/or H Shares
to be allotted and issued either during or after the
end of the Relevant Period;

(c) the aggregate nominal value of Domestic Shares
to be allotted and issued or agreed to be allotted
and issued (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the Board pursuant to the approval
in paragraphs (a) and (b) above, otherwise
than pursuant to (i) a rights issue (as defined
in paragraph (f) below); (ii) the exercise of the
conversion rights under the terms of any securities
which are convertible into such shares; (iii) the
exercise of rights of subscription under the terms
of any warrants issued by the Company; or (iv) any
scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for
the allotment of such shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on such shares in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company,
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal value of the Domestic Shares then in issue
at the date of the passing of this resolution;

ZREMBBES(ERESEER) T

RFER

EEE

(a)

(b)

(c)

Eﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁéikﬁ%gﬁ

REFRIRESR

FETX(c) ~ (d) R(e)BLzRHIT -
eEARREFS((EF2 RN
BERAMECER R TXHOR) T
AR B —HRE S E R e R A -
BT RBRERRRRAFERE
BARK010 TZARERIAE
B 1) K/ kAR B A AR
BEAR®0.10 T2BI ETINE
PR (TH L)

EX@EzStEREERSRE
SRR ERFT YR REFESL
AREFENEBHRIBERZIK
RBERBETRNERESHEZ
R Sk i SR AR

EFgRELX(RbIBRZHE
mACEE K BT R B ACHE K ETT
(B L RBBREREMLT )
ZAEREEE  RAOEBRGE
FRTXOB) ¢ SRR AR
B Z AT R + (iR
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Bl R B ERAMEMA R i
R A 2B B Bt i
BZBUZHEI - TEEBAR
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BRRBERGES

the aggregate nominal value of H Shares to
be allotted and issued or agreed to be allotted
and issued (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the Board pursuant to the approval
in paragraphs (a) and (b) above, otherwise
than pursuant to (i) a rights issue (as defined
in paragraph (f) below); (ii) the exercise of the
conversion rights under the terms of any securities
which are convertible into such shares; (iii) the
exercise of rights of subscription under the terms
of any warrants issued by the Company; or (iv) any
scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for
the allotment of such shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on such shares in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company,
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal value of the H Shares then in issue at the
date of the passing of this resolution;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall be
conditional upon the approval of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission being obtained
by the Company;

for the purpose of this special resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this special resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company following the
passing of this special resolution;

(i) the expiration of a period of 12 months
following the passing of this special
resolution; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in
this special resolution is revoked or varied
by a special resolution of the members of
the Company in general meeting.

'I 'I 4 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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BRRBERGES

"Rights issue” means an offer of shares open for
a period fixed by the Directors to holders of shares
of the Company on the register of members of
the Company on a fixed record date and, where
appropriate, the holders of the other equity
securities of the Company entitled to be offered
therein, in proportion to their then holdings of such
shares or other equity securities (subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of any
relevant jurisdiction, or the requirements of any
regulatory body or any stock exchange); and

(9) the Board be and is hereby authorised to make
such amendments to the articles of association
of the Company as it thinks fit so as to increase
the registered share capital and to reflect the new
capital structure of the Company as a result of
the allotment and issue of shares of the Company
pursuant to the approval granted under paragraph (a)
above”,;

7. to transact any other business.

By order of the Board of

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Zhang Hong

Chairman

Tonghua, Jilin Province,
the PRC, 30 March 2011
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Any shareholder of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting mentioned above is entitled to appoint one or more proxies
to attend and vote at the meeting on his or her behalf in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. A proxy needs not be
a shareholder of the Company.

In order to be valid, a proxy form of holder of H shares and, if such
proxy form is signed by a person under a power of attorney or other
authority on behalf of the appointer, a notarially certified copy of that
power of attorney or authority shall be deposited at the Hong Kong
Registrars Limited on 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road
East, Hong Kong (“the Company's Shares Registrar”) not less than 24
hours before the time for holding the meeting or 24 hours before the
time appointed for taking the poll.

In order to be valid, a proxy form of holder of Domestic shares and,
if such proxy form is signed by a person under a power of attorney
or other authority on behalf of the appointer, a notarially certified
copy of that power of attorney or authority shall be deposited at the
Registered Address of the Company not less than 24 hours before the
time for holding the meeting or 24 hours before the time appointed
for taking the poll.

Shareholders of the Company or their proxies shall produce
documents of their proof of identity when attending the meeting.

The register of shareholders of the Company will be closed from 27
May 2011 to 28 June 2011 (both days inclusive), during which no
transfer of shares will be registered. As regards holders of H Shares
and in order to ascertain the entitlement to attendance at the above
meeting, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificate must be lodged with the Company's Share
Registrar not later than 26 May 2011 at 4:00 p.m. for registration.

Shareholders of the Company who intend to attend the AGM have
to notify in writing of their attendance by sending such notice to the
Company by hand, post or fax not later than 7 June 2011.

The purpose of having resolution number 6 it to grant a general power
to the board of directors to allot and issue new shares subject to
applicable laws, regulations and rules.

The AGM is expected to last for half a day. Shareholders and their
proxies attending the AGM are responsible for their own transportation
and accommodation expenses.

Registered Address of the Company and the contact details of the
Company are as follows:

31 Beishan Street, Chaoyang Town, Huinan County,
Tonghua, Jilin Province, the PRC
Fax no: 86(435) 8212738

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2010
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